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Vv MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

In 2018, total assets in financial leasing sector increased by 17,86%, to TRY 68,506,343 Thousand, leasing receivables increased by
16,71% to TRY 60,707,422 Thousand, total profit of the sector decreased by 3.68% to TRY 917,163 Thousand, shareholders' equity
by 11,58% and TL 9.600.735 Thousand. In 2018, our Company's assets increased by 47.3% to TRL 3,085,523 Thousand, TRL
increased by 48,3% to TRL 2,788,516 Thousand, net profit increased by 18.4% to TRL 40,055 Thousand and shareholders' equity
An increase of 20.5% reached TL 247,159 Thousand.

Dear Stakeholders,

Although the global growth expectation was 3.7% in 2018, there were
downside risks to growth due to the slowdown in China, protectionist
trade policies, political uncertainties and Brexit-related problems.

Trade wars between the US and China formed the main agenda item of
2018. As expected in 2018, the US Federal Reserve (Fed) increased its
interest rates by 25 basis points four times. Trade wars, the sharp decline
in US stock markets in the last quarter of the year, concerns about the
slowdown in global growth and the decline in oil prices have created the
expectation that the Fed will slow down the rate hike in the markets.

The European Union (EU) was adversely affected by protectionist policies
and trade wars. Especially the slowing growth and political problems
after the second half of the year constitute a risk factor on the EU.

The trade wars with the US and the slowdown in global growth have had
a negative impact on the Chinese economy. In 2017, the economy
started to show signs of slowdown in 2018. The Chinese economy
achieved the lowest growth rate since 1990 with 6.6% in 2018.

In early 2018, due to the pricing of the sanctions to be imposed on Iran in
November, the oil prices have increased sharply, and the price of US
crude oil has seen over $ 76 / barrel. The US sanctions on Iran's oil and
energy exports began to be implemented on November 5th.

Turkey's economy has made a modest economic growth in 2018. With
7.4% growth rate in 2017 among the G-20 countries are at the forefront
of Turkey's economy in the first nine months of 2018 recorded a moder-
ate growth rate of 4.7%. In the first quarter, 7.2% in the third quarter with
the impact of the rapid rise in Turkey's economy grew 5.3% in the second
quarter interest rate has recorded a sharp deceleration in growth of
1.6%.

Despite the sharp slowdown in the third quarter, the positive impact
of the sharp rise in foreign exchange rates on export revenues led to
an increase in exports' contribution to growth. The said positive
contribution is expected to continue in the last quarter. Although the
government has taken a stabilization process in the last quarter in
line with the measures taken by the government, it is expected that
the economy will experience a lower growth rate in the last quarter
compared to the third quarter and a growth of 3.8% in 2018. -

In 2018, total assets in financial leasing sector increased by 17,86%,
to TRY 68,506,343 Thousand, leasing receivables increased by
16,71% to TRY 60,707,422 Thousand, total profit of the sector
decreased by 3.68% to TRY 917,163 Thousand, shareholders' equity
by 11,58% and TL 9.600.735 Thousand.

In 2018, our Company's assets increased by 47.3% to TRL 3,085,523
Thousand, TRL increased by 48,3% to TRL 2,788,516 Thousand, net
profit increased by 18.4% to TRL 40,055 Thousand and shareholders'
equity An increase of 20.5% reached TL 247,159 Thousand.

| would like to express my gratitude on behalf of our company to our

shareholders and investors for their trust in our success, our employ-
ees and our trust in our successes.

Best Regards,

QGO

Chairman of the Board

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You



VAKIF LERSING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 ¢ 09

V" MESSAGE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

In 2019, we wiill continue to stand by our investors who are the indispensable part of sustainable growth, inspired by our
motto “Future Towards You ” . We are excited to offer more support to our country's economy by producing financial
solutions that are diversified according to the needs and expectations of our customers and
increase our determination to work.

Dear Stakeholders,

In the first half of 2018, our country's economy had a strong growth of In 2019, we will continue to stand by our investors who are the
6.3%. However, the worsening trade wars with the second half of the indispensable part of sustainable growth, inspired by our motto
year, the UK's withdrawal process from the European Union, Iran “ Future Towards You ” . We are excited to offer more support to our

sanctions, trade protectionism, and the decline in China's growth country's economy by producing financial solutions that are diversi-
prospects. Due to the increase in the uncertainties in the world economy fied according to the needs and e xpectations of our customers and

and the possibility of economic slowdown, our country's economy was increase our determination to work.
also affected negatively. The increase in the exchange rate and inflation
experienced in the second half of the year was balanced with the rapid | would like to thank all of our stakeholders who contributed to the

fiscal and monetary policies of our government, and the constructive success of our company, our founder and our main shareholder
approach of the financial sector, especially the public banks, played an Vakifbank, our Board of Directors, our customers who trust us, our
important role in the balancing process. business partners and all of our employees who made a difference.

Decrease in investments due to the economic slowdown in the last

quarter was reflected in the financial leasing demands. The total amount \

of financial leasing agreement signed in 2018 decreased by 18%

compared to the previous year. As Vakif Leasing, we managed to increase \

the contract amount by 25% in 2018 despite the contraction in the sector R
as well as the investor. We increased our assets by 47% and our profitabil- e

ity by 18% and reached the highest figures in our Company's history.

In order to increase the variety of financial resources, we successfully SE ARSNy
issued the first bond issuance in 2017 and the first issuance in 2018. We General Manager
also provided special resources from the World Bank and other interna-

tional markets. The cost advantage we have achieved by increasing the

diversity of resources in recent years when transportation access to

resources has been difficult compared to previous years has been the

most important factor in increasing our effective marketing strategy,

continuous field work, customer focused approach, transaction volume

and profitability.

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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V' EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS AND
THEIR PERSONEL BACKGROUND

Serdar TUNCBILEK

Chairman of the Board

Seyh Mehmet BOZ

Member of the Board, Deputy Chairman

Alper ERSOY

Member of the Board

Emine UYUMAZ

Member of the Board

(14.6.2017 - ...)

Serdar Tungbilek graduated from the Faculty of Political Sciences of Ankara University and
started his career in 1985 as an Inspector at T. Emlak Bankasi A.S. After 4 years as an Inspector,
Tungbilek undertook the positions of Credit Marketing, Credit Monitoring, Securities
Department and Dusseldorf Financial Services Branch Director for 11 years and General S
ecretary at Egebank A.S. between 2000-2001. Between 2001-2005 Serdar Tuncbilek worked as
Deputy Head of the Department at B.D.D.K. (Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency),
2006-7 served as Group Coordinator and Deputy Head of Department at T.M.S.F (Savings
Deposits Insurance Fund). At the same time, Tungbilek, TM.S.F. a member of the Board of
Directors, a Member of the Supervisory Board and Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Tungbilek was elected as a member of the Board of Directors of T. Vakiflar Bankasi TAO in 2007
and has been serving as Vice General Manager of Vakif Sistem Pazarlama, Vakif Yatirnm Menkul
Degerler, Vakif Securities and Vakif Portféy A.S. between 2008 and 2014 as well as the Credit
Committee and Audit Committee Members for 5 years. He is a member of the Board of
Directors and Chairman of the Board of Directors. Between the years 2014-2017, Glines Sigorta
A.S. Serving as a Board Member Serdar Tuncbilek has been serving as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors since 14.06.2017.

(14.06.2017 - ...)

Seyh Mehmet Boz graduated from Cukurova University Faculty of Economic and
Administrative Sciences Department of Economics and completed his Master's degree in the
same department. He started his banking career in 1995 as an Assistant Inspector at Vakifbank.
After serving for six years as Assistant Manager and Manager in branches of Istanbul and
Adapazari, he served as the President of the General Accounting and Finance Department, the
Retirement and Health Care Department, the Head of the SME Banking Department and the
Head of the Retail and SME Loans respectively. Boz, who was brought to Istanbul First District
Directorate in 2015, was appointed as Assistant General Manager on 1 August 2017. Boz is
married with two children and speaks English. Since 14.06.2017, he has served as Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors.

(12.04.2016 - ...)

Born in 1978 in Izmir, Alper ERSOY graduated from ITU Department of Business Engineering in
2000. TVakiflar Bankasi TA.O. Alper ERSOY, who started as an "Assistant Inspector” in the
Board of Inspectors, respectively, is a member of TVakiflar Bankasi TA.O. Deputy Director at the
Validesultan Branch, Head of Product Management at the General Directorate, Directorate of
Agricultural Credits. He is currently serving as the President of VakifBank- Credit Policies and
Processes Implementation. He is married and has one child. He speaks English. It has the
SMMM document. Alper ERSOY, a member of our Board of Directors since 12.04.2016, is also a
member of Corporate Governance Committee and Riskin Early Detection Committee.

(03.04.2018 - ...)

Born in 1982 in Adana, Emine UYUMAZ graduated from the Department of Economics, Middle
East Technical University in 2005. He completed his master's degree in Bilgi University Banking
and Finance department. In 2006, he started to work at T. Vakiflar Bankasi TAO as an Assistant
Inspector. In July 2017, he was appointed as the Head of Commercial Loans Allocation Manage-
ment at Vakifbank. Emine UYUMAZ has been a Member of the Board of Directors in our
Company since 03.04.2018.
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EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS AND
THEIR PERSONEL BACKGROUND

ibrahim Halil CIFTCI

Member of the Board - Independent Member

Hiiseyin KECECI

Member of the Board - Independent Member

Seref AKSAC

Member of the Board - General Manager

(29.03.2012 - ...)

Ibrahim Halil CIFTCI graduated from Middle East Technical University Department of Business
Administration and in 1974 entered Is Bankasi A.S. between 1974 and 2001 as Inspector in the
Board of Inspectors, 2nd credits Assistant Manager, 2nd Regional Manager, Taksim Branch
Manager, Galata Branch Manager. Between 1987-2008, Trakya Iplik San.A.S., Man Motor
San.A.S., Topkapi Sise Cam San.A.S., Anadolu Cam San.A. Inc., Anadolu Sigorta A.S., Sise Cam
Fabrikalari A.S., Is Girisim A.S., and I,s Factoring A.S. ibrahim Halil CIFTCI General Manager at Is
Finansal Kiralama A.S. between 2001 and 2009, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors at
Leasing Association between 2004-20089. ibrahim Halil CIFTCI who was elected as a Board
Member at Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. as of 29.03.2012, is also a member of Corporate
Governance Committee, Riskin Early Detection Committee and Audit Committee. ibrahim Halil
CIFTCI Vice President of Economic Research Foundation and Member of Board of Directors of
Istanbul University Teknokent A.S., Board of Trustees of Tema Foundation and Board Member.

(14.06.2017 - ...)

He was born in 1964 in Gaziantep. In 1987, he graduated from Cukurova University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Business Administration in English. He
completed his master's degree in Gazi University. He studied international business and finance
in the United States. Working life in 1985 in the company of the Sabanci Group companies
starting in Marsa Margarine Industry Hussein KECECI, respectively, Development Bank of
Turkey, Is Bankasi A.S., Turkey Electrical Industry Inc. has continued to work life. He then served
as Executive Committee Member at Kiraga Holding A.S. and as finance director at Petrol Ofisi
A.S. between 2005 and 2007. Member of the Board of Directors at Unit Investments NV,
Member of the Board of Directors at Heksagon Group Companies and Member of the Board at
Tosyali Holding A.S. In 2007, he founded his own company, Erke Danismanlik ve Ticaret AS.
Hiiseyin KECECI is also a member of the Board of Directors of Erke Fertilizer Production Sales
and Marketing Inc. Since 14.06.2017, he has been an Independent Member of the Board of
Directors.

(14.06.2017 - ...)

Born in 1956 in Bayburt. He graduated from the Department of Public Administration at the
Faculty of Political Sciences, Istanbul Academy of Economic and Commercial Sciences in 1979.
He started his professional career in 1982 with T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.S. Aksac started as an
Assistant Inspector in 1986 and became an Inspector in 1986. Between 1990 and 1993, he
worked as the Assistant Manager of the Istanbul Branch and from 1993 to 2003 served as the
Director at various branches of the Bank. Between 2003-2005 he was appointed as Executive
Vice President in charge of Human Resources. In addition to these responsibilities, he also
served as a member of the Board of Auditors in Basak Sigorta, Tiirkmen Turkish Joint-Stock
Commercial Bank and Board Member in Ziraat Yatirim ve Securities. While working as General
Manager Responsible for Sales and Marketing at Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.S. and Acting
General Manager at August 2012, Aksag became General Manager of Ziraat Hayat ve Emekli-
lik A.S. It has been assigned. Seref AKSAC, who served as a Member of the Board of Directors at
TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. between 2014 and 2016 and as the Chairman of the Board at the
Company between April 1, 2015 and June 13, 2017, has been serving as the Company's General
Manager since 14.06.2017. He is married and has one child.

[74 Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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v THE MANAGEMENT

/4

Seref AKSAC

General Manager

v

Yilmaz Arslan AYDIN Emre AYDEDE

Assistant General Manager Assistant General Manager

/4 /4

Ahmet Erdogan

Tolga AKOCAK NEHROZOGLU

Marketing Manager

Ankara Branch Manager

v

Bora KIRGIZ

izmir Branch Manager

Murat KURTTAS

Antalya Branch Manager

v

Mustafa SARITAS

Information Technology Manager

Hiilya YILDIRIM

Asset and Risk Management Manager

/4 /4

Mehmet ilkay COSKUN Gonca YADIGAR

Group Manager Marketing Manager

/4 /4

Levent DEMIRCi

Bursa Branch Manager

Ferruh ATALAY

Adana Branch Manager

/4

Melda AKGUN

Insurance and Operations Manager

Sedat TASKIN

Credit Manager

/4 /4

Bayram KUYTAN

Risk Management Manager /

Deputy Internal Control Manager

[ Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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V" GENERAL INFORMATION
REGARDING COMPANY

® Date of Establishment 15/09/1988
® Activity Area Financial Leasing
® Company Headquarters istanbul
® Paid in Capital 140.000 TL
® Number of Employees 74
® Board Chairman Serdar TUNCBILEK
® General Manager Deputy Seref AKSAC
® |ndependent Auditing Firm PWC Independent Auditor and independent Accountant Public Accountant Inc.
® Address - Corporate Headquarters Biiyiikdere Av. Matbuat Street Gazeteciler Site No: 13 Esentepe/Sisli/istanbul
® Telephone +90(212) 337 67 67 - (Santral)
® Trade Registry Number 248616
® Mersis Number 0922003369500010
® Fax +90(212) 3376799
® \\ebsite www.vakifleasing.com.tr

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

® \/akif Insurance Intermediary Services Ltd.
® Vakif Factoring Services Inc.

® \akif Marketing Ind. and Trade Inc.

® Vakif Energy and Mining Inc.

® Dogu Investment Holding Inc.

® \/akif Investment Securities, Inc.

® \World Vakif UBB. Co. Ltd. (In liquidation)

PARTNERSHIP STRUCTURE
% Thousand TL

® T.Vakiflar Bankasi TAO % 58,71 |82.197.081
® Giines Insurance Inc. % 15,65 |21.908.579 %15 65
® T, Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. % 2,06 |2.886.478 ’

Employees and Serv.

Retirement Fund Provident

Fund Fondation % 1,04 1.454.571
e VakifBank Staff Private % 22,54 |31.553.291

Social Security Services Foundation N
e Public Offering % 100,00 | 140.000.000 :

\}

[ Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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/' CORPORATE IDENTITY- History / Milestones

On September 15, 1988, Vakif Leasing was appointed to
Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. as a subsidiary of

Vakifbank. In 1991, it became the first leasing company
listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange and opened to the

public.
30 years full of success filled the Leasing Foundation, In 2018, Vakif Leasing
. . . has reached an
contributing t.o increased development and asset size of TRY 3,085,523
employment in our country continues to be one of Thousand and
Turkey's surplus value. Vakif Leasing, which provides a net profit of
TRY 40,055 Thousand.

investors with significant advantages in leasing with the
experience of being able to make the right moves at the
right time with careful work, has adopted the right
principles from yesterday to today; decisively, faithfully
and progressively.

-9

the first bond issuance

Having a wide range of expertise, Vakif Leasing targets
real estate, energy, technology, transportation and

tourism investments.
The most important indicator of Vakif Leasing's a
innovative approach is; is the first company to provide

leasing services in sectors such as aircraft and aviation, Vaky; Lzasing
. reached at
wind power. 289,848 USD
. endorsement
Vakif Leasing has branches in Ankara, Adana, Izmir, in 2014.

Bursa and Antalya and continues to work with a wide
customer portfolio and service network throughout the
country, taking the institutional strength of nearly one
thousand branches of Vakifbank.

Vakif Leasing
was the first
leasing public

Vakif Leasing
was established

o

[74 Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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CORPORATE IDENTITY - Qur Vision - Our Mission
Our Values - Our Codes of Conduct

/4

To be a Leader Company, which is the first choice of
investors in the Leasing sector by providing the optimal
financial opportunities in customer investments; and
which aims for utmost customer satisfaction and
service quality.

/4

To create continuous value for our customers,
employees and shareholders by development of a
successful, modern and customer-oriented approach.

/4

High-quality service based on information and creativity; L ‘: 1:|.. =
Rapid and effective decision-making; J . :'

A strong sense of responsibility on a long lasting o LA =
development approach e 1
Open communication based on mutual trust, .

Employees who devoted to success and team spirit,

Commitment to ethical and professional codes of conduct

/4

-

High-quality service based on information and creativity;
Rapid and effective decision-making;

A strong sense of responsibility on a long lasting
development approach

Open communication based on mutual trust,
Employees who devoted to success and team spirit,

Commitment to ethical and professional codes of conduct

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You
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/" DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. The Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law is subject to the corporate governance princi-
ples determined in accordance with the capital market legislation and the Turkish Commercial Code and the relevant regulations and
pays utmost attention to the implementation of these principles. It has adopted the concepts of equality, transparency, accountability
and responsibility of the Corporate Governance Principles published by the Capital Markets Board.

The Company's Corporate Governance Principles included in the Corporate Governance Communiqué (II-17.1), which was published in
the official newspaper No. 28871 dated 03 January 2014;

a-) The compulsory application of the companies (1.3.1.), (1.3.5.), (1.3.6.), (1.3.9.), (4.2.6.), (4.3.1), ( (4.3.3), (4.3.4.), (4.3.5), (4.3.6.),
(437),(43.8),(43.7.),(438),(4.3.6) (4.5.2), (453.), (4.5.4), (4.5.9), (4.5.10), (4.5.11), (4.5. 12.), (4.5.13.), (4.6.2.) And (4.6.3.) In compli-
ance with the principles.

The duties, authorities and responsibilities of the hale Investor Relations Department, which carries out its activities as the Financial
Affairs and Investor Relations Department, have been revised in accordance with the framework specified in Article 11 of the Corporate
Governance Communique and thus full compliance with the relevant legislation has been achieved.

b-) For non-compulsory principles;

There are female members in the Company's Board of Directors. A target ratio and target time for female member rate has not been
determined with in the Board of Directors. In this context, 4.3.9. and there is a partial compliance with the principle of recommendation.
No conflict of interest has occurred between the stakeholders so far.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT:

The Corporate Governance Principles, which were announced by the Capital Markets Board (CMB) in 2017 Annual Report, were
complied with and implemented in the period of 01.01.2018 - 31.12.2018. Corporate Governance Compliance Statement, 49 Corporate
Governance Compliance Report and Corporate Governance Information Form which is prepared by the Company in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Communigqué numbered I1-17.1 dated 10.01.2019 and numbered 2/49 As, www.kap.org.tr, “Notification Type>
"Other”, ”Subject”> “Corporate Governance Compliance Report on kap.

[ Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
STAKEHOLDERS

2.1 Investor Relations Chapter

The Investor Relations Department operates under the head of the
Financial Affairs and Investor Relations Department, under the direction
of Group Manager Mehmet ilkay COSKUN in relation to the duties of
the Investor Relations Department.

The Financial Affairs and Investor Relations Department, which manag-
es institutional investors, rating agencies, shareholders and related
persons, makes a presentation to the Board of Directors regarding all the
activities carried out in quarterly periods, including the presentation of
comparative financial analysis with competitors.

The license of section manager is as shown below;

Licence
Corporate Governance
Rating License

*He is a member of the Corporate Governance Committee pursuant to Article 11 and
Article 2 of the Corporate Governance Communiqué.

Name / Surname
Mehmet ilkay COSKUN | Group Manager

Staff involved to carry out tasks of Directorate of Investor Relations
within Directorate of Financial Affairs and Investor Relations is as shown
below;

Name
Surname Phone Number

Mehmet ilkay Group Manager 0212 337 67 67 1.COSKUN@vakifleasing.com.tr
COSKUN

Ash KEKEG Assistant Manager | 0212 337 67 67 AKEKEC@vakifleasing.com.tr
Neslihan YILDIZLI | Senior Specialist 0212 337 67 67 N.YILDIZLI@vakifleasing.com.tr
Ei";:;OGLU Specialist 0212 337 67 67 F.HAFIZOGLU@vakifleasing.com.tr
Ece AKGUN Assistant Specialist | 9212 337 67 67 E.AKGUN@vakifleasing.com.tr

The main responsibilities and responsibilities of the Investor
Relations Department are as follows:

- Ensuring that the records of shareholders are kept healthy,
secure and up to date,

- Responding to the shareholders' written information requests
about the company, except for information about the company
that has not been disclosed to the public, confidential and trade
secrets,

- Ensuring that the General Assembly meeting is held in accord-
ance with the applicable legislation, the original contract and
other internal regulations,

- At the general assembly meeting, to prepare the documents
that shareholders can use,

- Ensuring that the record of voting results is kept and that the
reports related to the results are sent to the shareholders,

- To observe and monitor all aspects of public disclosure, including
legislation and the company's information policy.

During the year 2018, the Investor Relations Directorate,

- The Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held in 2018 has been
organized to fulfill the scope and the form required by the related
Law, Capital Markets Law, Corporate Governance Communiqué,
Company Articles of Association and other legislation.

VAKIF LERSING
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VAKIF FINANCIAL LEASING INC.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

2.2 Utilization of Shareholders’ Right to Information

Questions directed to the Investor Relations Unit are answered
by telephone or in writing in consultation with the most author-
ized person of the subject matter, except for confidential informa-
tion and trade secrets.

In 2018, although no information requests were received from
the Investor Relations Department, the answers to the questions
asked by telephone were given. Shareholders interested in share-
holders, capital increase, profit sharing transactions, general
assembly meetings, financial reports, special event disclosures
and so on. The information and developments related to the
Company are transferred to the related parties on a regular basis
via the internet site, mail and telephone. In addition, in the activi-
ty period of the domestic shareholders, the information requests
of the shares, the conversion of their existing shares and the
share requests of the shares after the death are responded to in
writing.

On the other hand, the request for the appointment of a special
auditor in the articles of association has not been regulated as an
individual right and there has been no request for the appoint-
ment of a special auditor during the period.

2.3 General Assembly Meetings

The General Assembly of our Company for the activity period of
2017 was held on 15.05.2018 at the company's headquarters
with the participation of shareholders, Ministry of Customs and
Trade Commissioner and 77.46% of the shareholders.

The Company held its Ordinary General Assembly Meeting in
2018 in accordance with the Regulation on General Assembly
Meetings to be held in an Electronic Company in Joint Stock
Companies Communigqué on the General Assembly System to be
Applied in the General Assemblies of Joint Stock Companies
Thus, stakeholders had the opportunity to participate in the
General Assembly meeting in electronic environment, made
suggestions, expressed opinions and had the opportunity to vote.

In order to inform shareholders before the General Assembly
meeting invitation for the General Assembly, agenda, proxy form
and the relevant legislation other documents annexed to the
Public Disclosure Platform, Turkey is announced to the public via
the Trade official newspaper same time the Company is
published documents mentioned on the website . General
Assembly call is made in the CRA system at least 21 days prior to
the meeting and call days except for meeting and call days for the
e-General Assembly service which enables the Company to
attend, make suggestions, express opinions and vote electroni-
cally.
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U/ VAKIF FINANCIAL LEASING INC.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In addition to these, the address information is also sent to our
partners in the Company's records by mail.

Financial Statements and Footnotes for the 2017 financial year
including the Company's Balance Sheet and Profit-Loss
statements, 2017 Board of Directors' Annual Report, Independ-
ent External Audit Report, prepared for the General Assembly,
and submitted to the information and review of the shareholders
before the General Assembly In addition to the CRA system, it is
kept ready for the information of our shareholders at the Compa-
ny General Directorate. In addition, upon the request of stake-
holders, invitation, agenda and proxy samples can be obtained
from the General Assembly. The shareholders who have the right
to attend the General Assembly and who have fulfilled the neces-
sary procedures to participate have attended the Ordinary
General Assembly Meeting in 2018.

In the announcement and invitation letters published before the
General Assembly;

- Date, time and place of the meeting,

-The meeting agenda,

- Which department was made by the Association (Board of
Directors),

- The addresses to be submitted to the examination of the share-
holders by the Annual Report and the balance sheet, profit and
loss statements in the actual meeting announcements (Head
Office),

- Examples of power of attorney for shareholders who cannot
attend the meeting are announced to the shareholders.

In the Activity Report; Information on the Company's operations,
top management, Company balance sheets, balance sheet
footnotes, Independent Audit Report, Corporate Governance
Compliance Report, etc. information is included. The Investor
Relations Department shall provide the shareholders requesting
the Annual Report before and after the General Assembly Meet-

ing.

At all Ordinary General Assemblies of the Company;, all sharehold-
ers have the right to speak, express their opinions and ask
guestions regarding the agenda regardless of their share rates. At
the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on May 15, 2018,
the questions asked by the shareholders attending both the
physical environment and the electronic environment, the wishes
and opinions they declare, the answers given by the Meeting
Chairman and the Board of the Council are given in detail in the
general assembly minutes. . General Assembly minutes and
attachments in accordance with General Assembly following
relevant legislation, the Public Disclosure Platform, Turkey Trade
official newspaper, e-Enterprise Information Portal and E-General
Meeting is announced to the public and share with Electronic
General Assembly System is also published on the Company's
website.

In 2018, due to the fact that the majority of the independent
members of the Board of Directors did not have a positive vote,
there were no transactions left to the General Assembly.

There are no significant transactions that may lead to a conflict of
interest between the shareholders holding the management
control, the members of the board of directors, the executives
with administrative responsibilities and their spouses and
relatives up to the second degree. In addition, it has been under-
stood that the persons in question do not carry out a transaction
on their own or other account of the business type of the Compa-
ny or its subsidiaries or they do not have any responsibility as an
unlimited partner in another partnership dealing with the same
kind of business.

Pursuant to the last article of the agenda, the shareholders and
other guests have exercised their right to ask questions, and in
return, they expressed their wishes to be beneficial after receiv-
ing sufficient answers from the company executives.

2.4 Voting and Minority Rights

The voting rights of the shareholders and the provisions regarding
the exercise of these rights are explained in the Articles of Associ-
ation of the Company.

At the General Assembly meetings, each one having one or ten
shares or one representative representing this amount has one
vote. Those who have more than ten shares have the right to vote
without being subject to a certain number of restrictions in
accordance with the above proportions.

There is no cross shareholding relationship in the Company's
capital. The exercise of minority rights is subject to the Turkish
Commercial Code, the Capital Markets Law, the relevant legisla-
tion and the communiqués and resolutions of the CMB.

Our company does not include cumulative voting method.
2.5 Profit Share Right
There is no privilege to participate in the profit of the Company.

The Company's. Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company,
which determines the profit distribution decisions by taking into
consideration the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code,
Capital Market Legislation, Capital Markets Board regulations, tax
laws and other legal regulations together with the articles of
association, is determined according to the following principles.
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According to this;

- The Board of Directors decides on profit distribution; The CMB
legislation provides recommendations to the General Assembly
taking into consideration the market conditions and the Compa-
ny's objectives. In the event that there is no negativity in the
economic conditions of the world and country as a dividend
distribution policy, and if the Company's financial structure and
capital adequacy ratios are at the foreseen levels, it is foreseen
that at least 10% of the distributable profit shall be distributed as
cash and / or registered shares.

- The decision of distribution shall come into force if it is approved
by the General Assembly and the decisions taken shall be
announced to the public on the same day through the Public
Disclosure Platform.

- Shares per share of the shares to be issued by the Company are
distributed equally to all shareholders. The Company may evalu-
ate dividend advances in accordance with the provisions of the
current legislation.

- Cash dividend payments are made until the end of the second
month following the date of the General Assembly meeting,
where the decision for dividend distribution is made at the latest.
The dividend distribution in the form of bonus shares is carried
out after obtaining the legal permissions.

- There are no privileged shares in terms of taking shares from the
profit.

- If there is no profit distribution, the Board of Directors informs
the shareholders about why they are not distributed and where
the undistributed profit is used.

- Dividend distribution is complied with the articles of association
of the company, the Capital Market Law, the provisions of the
Capital Market Board and the Turkish Commercial Code.

The Board of Directors submits its proposal for dividend distribu-
tion to the General Assembly every year, and before the General
Assembly, through the activity report. The Board of Directors'
proposal on profit distribution is discussed and resolved at the
General Assembly. In 2018, the decision on dividend distribution
in 2017 has been implemented and necessary notifications have
been made to official authorities. In addition, the related decision
was announced to the public on the same day through the Public
Disclosure Platform.
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2.6 Assignment of Shares

The Company's Articles of Association contain no provisions
restricting the transfer of shares. Pursuant to Article 7 of the
Articles of Association, all shares of our Company are registered
and are possible by observing the provisions of the related
legislation.

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
3.1 Corporate Website and Content

You may have access to website of Company, with alternatives in
Turkish or English: www.vakifleasing.com.tr.

Website of Company is compatible with the principles regarding
corporate website of Communiqué on Corporate Governance
(-17.1) numbered (2.1.1), (2.1.2) and (2.1.3), issued on January 3,
2014, by the CMB.

3.2 Activity Report

Activity Report of the Company is issued in accordance with the
principles regarding annual report of Communiqué on Corporate
Governance (II-17.1), with article number (2.2.1) and (2.2.2),
published on January 3, 2014 by the CMB.

STAKEHOLDERS
4.1 Informing of Stakeholders

Stakeholders of Vakif Leasing are regularly informed through
activity reports, news and explanations on the website.

In order to provide accurate and reliable information flow,
information about the financial statements disclosed quarterly is
shared with investors via the website and announced on KAP. All
guestions and requests directed by investors are answered by
telephone and e-mail.
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4.2 Participation Stakeholders' in Management

Two different models have been formed in our company regard-
ing the participation of stakeholders in management.

Committee Meeting: Decisions taken at regular committee
meetings are implemented by our Company.

Suggestion System: Thanks to this system, employees present
their suggestions for improvement and development in all
matters related to the Company and the suggestions are put into
practice.

In addition, “Weekly General Evaluation Meetings iler are held for
informing the employees about the Company's general activities
and course, and the financial structure and performance data of
the company are evaluated together with the employees.

4.3 Human Resources Policy

Our company's human resources policy is carried out within the
framework of Human Resources Regulation . We are also
working on career planning. Our company plays an important
role in the success and development of the sector. Vakif Leasing
pays special attention to providing and improving the equipment
necessary for efficient work, especially for education, and sees its
employees as the most important capital. The researcher
employs employees who have visionary, creative, problem-solv-
ing qualities. All of our employees at our company have a working
spirit with team spirit and innovation is at the highest level.

In Vakif Leasing, recruitments and promotions are carried out by
a Board of Directors' resolution within the framework of the
Human Resources Regulation. There is no discrimination
between our Company employees. Our employees are in
complete equality in all matters.

4.4 Ethics and Social Responsibility

¢ Full compliance with regulated regulations

e Integrity, transparency and reliability in relation to custom-
er-vendor-lender

¢ To actin addition to profitability, taking into account the reasons
for economic development

e Respect information and confidentiality and keep secrets

¢ Not creating unfair competition by taking into consideration
the common interest of the sector.

Vakif Leasing is aware of its social responsibilities to its customers,
its employees and the community and strives to fulfill these
responsibilities in the best way possible. Adheres to all legislation
related to business life and stands behind and assures the public
commitment to its service, encourages its employees to honest
and ethical behavior, takes all precautions related to workplace
safety, does not engage in misleading, deceptive advertising and
marketing activities and favors discrimination . It tries to solve
customer problems quickly, it meets a great part of the employ-
ees' health expenses and continuously tries to increase the
quality of service.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5.1 Structure and Formation of the Board of Directors
The structure of the Board of Directors is defined as follows according to Article 8 of the Articles of Association.

The Company's affairs and management shall be carried out by a board of directors consisting of at least 5 members including the general
manager. Each year, the Board of Directors elects a chairman and a vice chairman to represent the chairman in his absence. The duties of
the general directorate and the chairman of the board of directors cannot be combined in the same person. The members other than the
general manager are elected by the general assembly by the shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the Turkish Commercial
Code. The majority of the members of the Board of Directors consists of non-executive members. Members of the Board of Directors
who do not have any executive duty shall have independent members who have the qualifications to perform their duties without being
influenced under any circumstances, whose number and qualifications are determined in accordance with the regulations of the Capital
Markets Board regarding Corporate Governance and the relevant legislation provisions. The General Manager of the Company and, in his
absence, his deputy are natural members of the Board of Directors. The general manager and his or her attorney must have at least seven
years of professional knowledge and experience in the field of finance or business administration.

STARTING
DATE OF
THIS
NAME / SURNAME POSITION
Serdar TUNCBILEK Chairman of the Board 14/06/2017
Seyh Mehmet BOZ Deputy Chairman of the Board 14/06/2017
Member of the Board 12/04/2016
Alper ERSOY Member of Corporate Governance Committee 09/09/2016
Early Identification of Risk Committee Member 09/09/2016
Hiiseyin KECECI Independent Mem(?ber of tr.1e Board 14/06/2017
Member of the Audit Committee 14/06/2017
Emine UYUMAZ Member of the Board 03/04/2018
Independent Memeber of the Board 29/03/2012
) . . Member of Corporate Governance Committee - Chairman 11/04/2012
Ibrahim Halil CIFTCI
Early Identification of Risk Committee - Chairman 30/04/2013
Member of the Audit Committee - Chairman 11/04/2012
Seref AKSAC Member of the Board - General Manager 14/06/2017

The Chairman of the Board of Directors does not have any executive duties. General Manager Seref AKSAC is an executive member of
the Board of Directors.

The CVs of the Board Members are published in the Annual Report.

In accordance with the provisions of the Communiqué on the Determination and Implementation of Corporate Governance Principles,
Serial: IV No: 56, the number of independent members is determined as two. The statements of independence of Ibrahim Halil CIFTCI
and Huseyin KECECI and the Corporate Governance Principles of the CMB under the criteria set forth in the legislation, articles of associa-
tion and related communiqué are stated in the report dated 14.05.2018. The independent members were submitted to the Board of
Directors on 14.05.2018.

There is no circumstance that the independent members of the Board of Directors are independent and that there is no circumstance in
the relevant activity period. The term of office of Independent Member of the Board of Directors ibrahim Halil CIFTCi was extended by
another year with the permission of the Capital Markets Board.
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Partnerships and tasks of members of Board of
Directors outside company:

T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O.

NAME / SURNAME

Serdar TUNGBILEK Deputy Chairman of the Boa

Seyh Mehmet BOZ T.Vakiflar Bankas! T.A.O. General Manager Assistant
Chairman Implementing

Credit Policies and Processes

Alper ERSOY T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O.

Head of Commercial Loans
Allocation Management

Emine UYUMAZ T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O.

5.2 Activity Principles of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall conduct the company affairs and
operations where the Company's head office is located or where
the majority of the Board members demand. However, it is obliga-
tory to meet at least once a month. The fact that all of the mem-
bers are present at the meeting place on a certain date and time,
even if the meeting has not been done without prejudice the
validity of the meeting. Those who have the right to participate in
the Board of Directors meeting of the Company may participate in
these meetings in electronic environment pursuant to Article 1527
of the Turkish Commercial Code. The Company may establish an
electronic meeting system that will allow the right holders to
participate and vote electronically in accordance with the
provisions of the Communiqué on General Assembly Meetings to
be made in Electronic Environment other than the general assem-
bly meetings of the corporation in commercial companies as well
as the services that are established for this purpose. In the meet-
ings to be held, it is ensured that the rights holders of the rights
specified in the related legislation can be used within the frame-
work specified in the Communiqué via the system established in
accordance with this provision of the Company's Articles of Associ-
ation or through the system to be supported. The provisions of the
Turkish Commercial Code shall apply to the quorum of the Board
of Directors and the quorum for decision.

The agendas of the Board of Directors meetings are determined
according to the matters and authorities specified in the articles of
association. During the period of 01.01.2018 - 31.12.2018, 37
Board meetings were held. As required by the Company's opera-
tions and transactions, the Board of Directors shall be held at the
place of the Company's headquarters or at the place requested by
the majority of the Members of the Board of Directors. However, it
is obligatory to meet at least once a month. The provisions of the
Turkish Commercial Code shall apply to the quorum for the Board
of Directors and the quorum for decision. He is the secretary oof
the General Manager. Decisions to be made to the public are
disclosed to the publicimmediately after the end of the meeting.

- Approval of the business and finance plans with the determina-
tion of the subjects of the Company's activities,

- Issues related to the calling and organization of the Extraordinary
General Assembly,

- Finalizing the annual report to be submitted to the General
Assembly,

- Election of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the
appointment of a new member,

- Establishment or termination of administrative units,

- Appointment or dismissal of the Chief Executive Officer / General
Manager,

- Creation of committees,

- Merger, Division, restructuring, selling of 10% of the entire
company or fixed assets or investing in amounts exceeding 10%,
expenses exceeding 10% of the total assets,

- Determining the dividend policy of the company, the profit to be
distributed,

- All members participate in meetings held on matters such as
raising or decreasing capital.

5.3 Number, Structure and Independence of Committees
Formed Within Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of two members (President-
ibrahim Halil CIFTCI, Member- Hiiseyin KECECI), consisting of three
members (Chairman - ibrahim Halil CIFTCi, Member). - Alper
ERSOY, Member - Mehmet ilkay COSKUN) The Corporate Govern-
ance Committee and the Early Detection of Risk Committee
(Chairman- ibrahim Halil CIFTCi, Member- Alper ERSOY) were
formed.

The number of Board Members is 6 and the membership of the
Board of Directors Since the number of members of the commit-
tees is higher than the number of the Board of Directors members
according to the principles stated in the CMB Corporate Govern-
ance Principles and BRSA; members serve on more than one
committee.

5.4 Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism
- Internal Control

The internal control unit operating under the Audit Committee
within the body of the Board of Directors is within the scope of the
company-specific control points; - to determine the risks that may
occur, to take preventive and mitigation measures and to report
the results to the Audit Committee periodically (at least twice a
year).
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Company activities, systems and processes; whether it has been
implemented in accordance with legal regulations, management
strategies and policies, and leasing practices; There is a systematic
and disciplined approach to directives, workflows and employee
compliance and compliance, and recommendations are made to
identify and prevent risks and take measures to mitigate them.

It is aimed to define, evaluate, monitor and manage the risk
factors of the potential credit, market and operation, which may
affect the Company's assets, in order to prevent the damages
that may affect the Company's targets, and to create an internal
control system for the use of the results in decision mechanisms.

The Internal Control Manager also carries out the duties of ensur-
ing compliance with the legislation of the Financial Crimes Investi-
gation Board as a Compliance Officer, taking necessary measures
throughout the Company, carrying out training and control activi-
ties and ensuring communication with the Board.

- Risk Management

It operates in accordance with the Early Detection of Risk
Committee within the Board of Directors. Periodically reports to

the Early Detection of Risk Committee by identifying the princi- -

ples, approaches and key elements to reveal the risks and strate-
gies to be followed in line with the Company's general strategies
and short- and long-term goals.

Risk management process; It is a cycle in which the risks that may
or may not prevent the realization of the strategic objectives of
the organization are identified, defined, classified, and their
priorities are determined, evaluated and monitored as a result of
the risk assessment.

5.5 The Company's Strategic Goals

The strategic goals that our managers create are endorsing the
evaluation of the previous year and the targets of the next year at
the end of each year. In addition, our Board of Directors evaluates
the achievement of the identified targets.
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5.6 Financial Rights

At the Ordinary General Assembly dated May 15, 2018, it was
decided to pay TL 4,250 monthly to the members of the Board of
Directors.

There are no other fees or rights granted to the members of the
Board of Directors. The remunerations and benefits of the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors are not determined according to
their performance. The losses of the members of the Board of
Directors due to their defects during their duties are not insured.

The Company has not provided any debts or credits to any Board
Member, nor does it have any guarantees or warranties, such as
indemnity, given by a third party through the personal lending of
athird party.

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Principles, the
remunerations and all other benefits provided to the senior
management as well as the members of the Board of Directors
are disclosed to the public through the annual report. However,
the disclosure is not made on the basis of the person but on the
basis of the distinction between the Board of Directors and senior
management.

In 2018, the Company paid TRY 379 Thousand to the Members of
the Board of Directors and TL 1.491 Thousand to the General
Manager and Assistant General Managers.
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VAKIF LEASING INC.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) | do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities within the last five years, do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or
privileged shares either jointly or solely or do not have established a significant commercial relation between the
corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect and share-
holders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives
by blood or marriage up to second degree,

b) have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant
duty and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corpo-
ration purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed,
especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation,
at the time period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods,

c) have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,

¢) will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being elected, except
being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) lam residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in
conflicts of interests between the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional
reputation and experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation
and duly fulfill the allocated duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years,
from Board of Directors.

g) | am not the independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such;
the corporation or the controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corpo-
rations and in more than five corporations in total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

| have not been registered and announced as a board member representing a legal entity.

In case of the emergence of a condition violating this independence, | will immediately inform the board of
directors for the change to be declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of
board of directors and others as the principle requires since | will lose independence under such circumstance.

12.04.2018
IM

Independent Member of

Board of Directoﬂi
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VAKIF LEASING INC.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) | do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities within the last five years, do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or
privileged shares either jointly or solely or do not have established a significant commercial relation between the
corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect and share-
holders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives
by blood or marriage up to second degree,

b) have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant
duty and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corpo-
ration purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed,
especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation,
at the time period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods,

c) have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,

¢) will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being elected, except
being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) lam residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in
conflicts of interests between the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional
reputation and experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation
and duly fulfill the allocated duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years,
from Board of Directors.

g) | am not the independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such;
the corporation or the controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corpo-
rations and in more than five corporations in total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

| have not been registered and announced as a board member representing a legal entity.

In case of the emergence of a condition violating this independence, | will immediately inform the board of
directors for the change to be declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of
board of directors and others as the principle requires since | will lose independence under such circumstance.
14.05.2018

Board of Directors
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AFFILIATION REPORT - 2018

The Affiliation Report Prepared As Per Article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code

Pursuant to Article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102, which entered into force on July 1, 2012, Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S.,
the controlling shareholder of its parent, TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. and the report on the relationship of the controlling shareholder with
the affiliated partners. Within the framework of the information presented to the Board of Directors, Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. In all
transactions carried out in 2018 with the controlling partner and the controlling partner of the controlling shareholder, the transaction is
performed or any action is taken or avoided in accordance with the known circumstances in which the transaction is performed. And
that there were no measures requiring equalization in this framework.
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EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

V In 2018, the Company increased its paid-in capital from TRY 109,000 Thousand to TRY 140,000 Thousand. The increased amount was
covered by 2017 profit. There has been no change in the shareholding structure in 2018. There has been no change in the
organizational chart.

V There is no research and development activity in 2018.
During the 2018 fiscal year, PwC Independent Audit and Independent Accountant and Financial Consultant A.S. was audited by
independent auditors on 30.06.2018 and independent audits were performed on 31.12.2018. In addition, the Company's financial
statements are subject to full taxation of the corporation tax NSR Yeminli Mali Msavirlik A.S. has been subject to tax inspection on a

quarterly basis.

/4 There are no ongoing lawsuits or legal proceedings against the Company that may have a negative impact on the Company's finan-
cial position or results.

There are no administrative and judicial sanctions imposed on the members of the company and the governing body due to the
practices contrary to the provisions of the legislation.

[/ No extraordinary general meeting was held during the year.
/4 The Company does not have any own shares acquired by the Company.

Vakif Leasing's turnover increased by 4,07% in 2018 from USD 258,874 Thousand to USD 269,415 Thousand. The number of transac-
tions, which were 669 in 2017, was 506 in 2018.

In 2018, Vakif Leasing's contract value increased by 31.96% compared to the previous year and reached USD 268,663 Thousand from
USD 203,589 Thousand. In 2018, the number of active contracts, which were 536, was 639 in 2017.

[/ Aiming to achieve disciplined growth, the Company has been selective in growth in order to manage the profit margin pressure that
has been increased as a result of competition in an effective and balanced manner, while not compromising its bottom line spread
and quality portfolio creation strategy.

L/ As of the end of 2018, the Company's paid-in capital is TL 140 million, and there are no findings and opinions regarding the fact that
the capital has remained undisturbed and the Company is in debt.
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2018 GLOBAL ECONOMY IN THE WORLD AND TURKEY

In 2018, there were signs of slowing down in the global
economy.
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Conservative policies and trade tensions and political uncertain-
ties posed risks on global economic growth in 2018. Trade wars
between the US and China formed the main agenda item of
2018. The trade tension between the two countries began in
March when Trump introduced a customs duty on imported steel
and aluminum. Afterwards, the tension has increased with
reciprocal tariffs with China. During the G-20 Leader Summit held
on 30 November - 1 December, US President Donald Trump and
Chinese President Xi Jinping agreed that no new customs duty
should be introduced for 90 days between the two countries and
that the US and China could reach an agreement for 90 days. and
the fact that it is in trade negotiations for Turkey has been
welcomed. However, the markets, which take into consideration
the previous developments between the US and China, are
cautious about recent developments.

The European Union (EU) was adversely affected by protectionist
policies and trade wars. Especially the slowing growth and
political problems after the second half of the year constitute a
risk factor on the EU. The protests by the Yellow Vests in Novem-
ber in response to the fuel surge and economic worsening of
economic conditions against French President Emmanuel
Macron, one of the most important defenders of the EU, created
political instability. In the last months of 2018, concerns about
ltaly's 2019 draft budget have been a risk factor for the European
Union. The fact that Italy, which had a heavy burden of debt,
rejected the target for the budget deficit / GDP ratio of 2.4% in
2019, which was initially rejected by the EU Commission, caused
concerns. A budget agreement could be reached between lItaly
and the EU Commission, which reduced the budget deficit / GDP
target to 2.04%. The uncertainties regarding the UK's Brexit
process continued in 2018. Prime Minister Theresa May has
agreed on a draft Brexit agreement with EU countries, but the
draft has not been ratified by the UK Parliament.

The trade wars with the US and the slowdown in global growth
have had a negative impact on the Chinese economy. In 2017, the
economy started to show signs of slowdown in 2018. The
Chinese economy achieved the lowest growth rate since 1990
with 6.6% in 2018. After the hard capital outflows in 2015, the
concerns that the Chinese economy may experience a new crisis
continue in the markets. However, following the problems with
the US, the weak monetary policy measures against the econom-
ic slowdown, the relatively low indebtedness ratio despite the
high indebtedness ratio, the capital controls and the high dollar
reserve are not expected to be similar to the situation in 2015.
The course of trade disputes between the US and China will be
important for the global economy and the Chinese economy.

In 2018, the Fed increased its interest rates to 4.

As expected in 2018, the US Federal Reserve (Fed) increased its
interest rates by 25 basis points four times. Trade wars, the sharp
decline in US stock markets in the last quarter of the vyear,
concerns about the slowdown in global growth and the decline in
oil prices have created the expectation that the Fed will slow
down the rate hike in the markets. In addition, the fact that the
yield curve, which is closely followed by market analysts and
which is considered to be a recession indicator, reversed in 2-year
and 5-year maturity bonds and hover in 10-year futures led the
Fed to decrease the interest rate increase expectation for 2019
from 2 to 2 in December meeting. The Fed envisages an interest
rate hike in 2020. The Fed stated that the interest rates to be
made in 2019 will remain dependent on the data and stated that
the interest rates are close to the natural interest rate. In October
2017, Fed started to decrease its balance sheet and continued its
normalization process in 2018. Fed Chairman Powell stated that
the Fed's process of reducing its balance sheet, which reaches $
4.5 trillion, will continue in 2019. Changes in the road map for the
Fed's interest rate hikes in 2019 will be followed.

The European Central Bank (ECB) continued to normalize its
monetary policy by ending asset purchases in December. It is not
expected that the ECB will not increase interest rates until the
second half of 2019 and in any case the inflation rate is close to
2%. It is expected that the first interest rate increase will be made
in the last quarter of 2019 or in 2020.
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The Bank of England (BoE) raised its interest rates once again in
August 2018, after an interest rate hike in 2017 for the first time
after the global crisis. Unlike the US and European Central Banks,
the Bank of Japan (BoJ), which failed to pull out of low inflation
and low growth rates, has not continued to change its interest
rates and incentive program.

A fluctuating course in oil prices prevailed.

In early 2018, due to the pricing of the sanctions to be imposed
on Iran in November, the oil prices have increased sharply, and
the price of US crude oil has seen over $ 76 / barrel. The US
sanctions on Iran's oil and energy exports began to be imple-
mented on November 5th. However, US President Donald Trump
put pressure on OPEC (the Organization of Petroleum Exporting
Countries) not to reduce oil production, especially Saudi Arabia, in
order to prevent the oil embargo against Iran from causing an
increase in il prices. In addition, Trump has granted 180 days of
exemption to 8 countries that import oil from Iran in order to
prevent the embargo imposed on Iran from causing a short
supply in the market. 6 months exemption from 8 countries,
China, Greece, India, Italy, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and Turkey.
In order to prevent price hike, the US has given exemption to

these countries and aimed to close the production limit with the -

production of Saudi Arabia which is the biggest producer of
OPEC. In November, Saudi Arabia's oil production reached an
historic high of about 11 million barrels per day.

At the OPEC meeting held in Vienna on December 6, 2018 in
OPEC and non-OPEC member, OPEC reached an agreement for
production for the first six months of 2019. OPEC manufacturers
have agreed to reduce production by 800,000 barrels per day.
Russia and other allies agreed to cut 400,000 barrels. 1.2 million
barrels of production will come into force in January. On the other
hand, the trade war between the US and China, the expectations
for a slowdown in the global economy in the last quarter of the
year, and hence a decrease in global oil demand, suppress the rise
in oil prices. The price of US crude oil, which followed a volatile
course in 2018, dropped below the $ 50 / barrel level. In Novem-
ber 2018, the US embargoed 8 countries for a period of 6 months
despite the embargo imposed on Iran. In addition, the US's shale
gas production and becoming an important oil exporter have
strengthened the expectation that oil prices will not rise in the
upcoming period.

TURKISH ECONOMY

Turkey's economy has made a modest economic growth
in 2018.
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With 7.4% growth rate in 2017 among the G-20 countries are at
the forefront of Turkey's economy in the first nine months of 2018
recorded a moderate growth rate of 4.7%. In the first quarter,
7.2% in the third quarter with the impact of the rapid rise in
Turkey's economy grew 5.3% in the second quarter interest rate
has recorded a sharp deceleration in growth of 1.6%. Despite the
sharp slowdown in the third quarter, the positive impact of the
sharp rise in exchange rates in August led to an increase in
exports' contribution to growth. The said positive contribution is
expected to continue in the last quarter. Although the govern-
ment has taken a stabilization process in the last quarter in line
with the measures taken by the government, it is expected that
the economy will experience a lower growth rate in the last
quarter compared to the third quarter and a growth of 3.8% in
2018.
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The budget deficit continued to increase due to the expansion-
ary fiscal policy.

As a result of the expansionary fiscal policy steps, the rapidly
growing budget deficit recovered in the first half of 2018. Budget
expenditures increased by 24% year-on-year in the period in
question, while budget revenues increased by 20% due to
stagnation in domestic demand, SCT regulation in fuel oil and
discounts on durable consumer goods and a more moderate
increase compared to budget expenditures. However, despite
the acceleration in the increase in budget expenditures, the
increase in the increase in revenues compared to the previous
year has been a positive development. Turkey is the most power-
ful pen in macro-economic indicators, the budget deficit / GDP
ratio in the third quarter of 2018 continued to remain below the
Maastricht Criteria realized at the level of 2.3% to 3%. The ratio is
expected to be 1.9% next year.

The increase in inflation accelerated.
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The annual inflation rate, which ended 2017 with 11.9%, contin-
ued to increase in 2018 and rose to 25.2% in October due to the
negative effect of the sharp increase in the foreign currency in
August. After the calmness of the foreign exchange market, the
government's measures (SCT cuts and other discounts), the
monthly inflation in November was negative. Thus, the inflation
ended the year at 20.30%. If there is no new exchange rate shock
in the next year, it is expected that inflation will decrease after the
first half of the year and inflation will close by 15-16%.

CBRT maintained its tight monetary policy stance.
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Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey (CBRT) sharp fluctuation in
the foreign exchange market by 2018 its tight monetary policy
stance to protect in 2017, trade war on a global scale, Brexit devel-
opments, the Fed's tightening monetary policy steps, has kept
even intensifying the negative impact of geopolitical risks.

Taking into account the upside risks on inflation, the CBRT raised
the extraordinary lliquidity window lending rate by 300 basis
points to 16.5% in May. In addition, CBRT completed the simplifi-
cation process in May and set the one-week repo auction rate as
the policy rate. As the exchange rate volatility increased and the
risks on inflation increased, the CBRT raised the policy interest
rate by 625 basis points in September meeting and made a strong
monetary tightening. Thus, the one-week repo rate was
increased to 24%, the overnight lending rate to 25.5%, the
borrowing interest rate to 22.5% and the late liquidity window
lending rate to 27%. In addition, steps have been taken to provide
liquidity to banks, such as the reduction of required reserves, and
measures to be taken against TL and foreign currency liquidity
management. The CBRT stressed that it will maintain its tight
stance until a lasting decline in inflation.
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Unemployment rate increased.

Unemployment rate regressed in the third quarter after the
decrease in exchange rate and interest rates as well as the
slowdown in economic activity became more pronounced in the
first two quarters of the year. It was realized as 11.4% in October.
Despite the balancing that started in the last quarter of the
economy, while the weakening services sector in domestic
demand was reflected more clearly in employment figures, the
contraction in the construction sector with cost pressure had a
negative impact on the sector employment. Considering that the
slowdown in the economy will be reflected to the unemploy-
ment rate in the forthcoming period, the unemployment rate is
expected to regress in the first quarter of next year after the
13-14% level.

The central government gross debt stock increased in the
leadership of foreign debts.

As of the end of 2017, the central government gross debt stock,
which was TL 876.5 billion at the end of 2017, stood at TL 1 trillion
66.8 hillion. TL 586.1 billion of the debt stock is composed of TL
and TL 480.6 billion is comprised of foreign currency denominat-
ed liabilities. Although the ratio of debt stock to GDP is below 60% -
within the framework of the Maastricht Criterion called EU Finan-
cial Rule%, the domestic borrowing of the Treasury has increased
as a result of the increase in budget deficit due to the increasing
economic incentives in 2018. Therefore, the ratio of debt stock to
GDP may increase. However, the ratio will remain below the
Maastricht criterion.

The current account balance gave a surplus for the first time in
3 years.

In May 2018, the annual current account deficit, which reached
the highest level after April 2014 with USD 58.2 billion, decreased
as a result of the economic stabilization process. The current
account balance gave a surplus for the first time in August after a
3-year period and a 12-month decline in the current account
deficit. The decrease in current account deficit is expected to
continue in 2019 as well. Thus, the current account deficit / GDP
ratio, which was 5.6% in 2017, is expected to decline to 3.5% in
2019, and the decline in 2019 is expected to continue.



VAKI LERSING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 ¢ 42

VAKIF LEASING IN 2018

VAKIF LEASING IN 2018

Vakif Leasing's turnover increased by 4,07% in 2018 from USD 258,874 Thousand to USD 269,415 Thousand. The number of
transactions, which were 669 in 2017, was 506 in 2018.

In 2018, Vakif Leasing's contract value increased by 31.96% compared to the previous year and reached USD 268,663 Thousand from
USD 203,589 Thousand. In 2018, the number of active contracts, which were 536, was 639 in 2017.

One thousand USD-Vakif Leasing

Period 2018 2017 Increase %
First 3-month period 81,416 46,699 74,34
Second 3-month period 87,098 33,578 159,39
Third 3-month period 70,515 56,178 25,52
Fourth 3-month period 29,634 68,239 -56,57
TOTAL 268,663 203,589 31,96
Number of contracts 536 639 -16,12
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Vakif Leasing is one of the oldest players in the Turkish leasing sector. Since 1988, Vakif Leasing has maintained its pioneering role in the
promotion and development of financial leasing. Vakif Leasing, which mediated a fixed asset investment of 269 Million USD in 2018,
made significant contributions to the development of our country's economy as well as SMEs.

Vakif Leasing, which aims to provide financial intermediation to SMEs and commercial segment investors constituting a significant part
of its customer portfolio, continues its path by increasing its market share in the sector.

In 2018, the Sell and Back Lease product contributed to Vakif Leasing's transaction volume in parallel with the sector. In line with its
sustainable targets, Vakif Leasing aims to concentrate mainly on real estate, business and construction machinery in line with its sustaina-
ble targets and aims to increase its market share in 2019 by supporting investments without considering scale and sector differences.

With over 30 years of experience, industry knowledge and solution-oriented employees and alternative financing options, we have
brought a great deal of activity to our company as well as the sector. The companies that are in need of capital and who aim to grow their
business can strengthen their balance sheet and credibility by strengthening the equity with in Sell and Back Lease method.

In 2018, Vakif Leasing increased its assets by 47% to TL 3,086 Million with a transaction volume of 269 million USD, while its financial
lease receivables were increased by 48% to TL 2,789 million and shareholders' equity was 20%. has increased to TL 247 million and
continued its growth trend.

Our target for 2019, our transaction volume taking into account Turkey's domestic market growth and demand for commercial loans,
which carry a healthy growth to come. Vakifbank will continue its efforts to reach its targets with its wide customer portfolio and service
network in the whole country by taking the corporate power of nearly thousand branches of Vakifbank.

Foundations Leasing investors on-site service and quick response in order to give Ankara, Izmir, Adana, are represented in Bursa and
Antalya in some branches across Turkey is planning to realizing its goal the development and support staff of the branch network.
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TOTAL ASSETS (THOUSAND TL)

2018 3,085,523

2016 1,686,534

2015 I — 1,505,588

1,201,561

+%47.3

Vakif Leasing's total assets increased
by 47.3% compared to the previous
year and reached TRY 3,085,523
thousand.

2014

LEASING RECEIVABLES (THOUSAND TL)

1,091,578

2018 2,788,516 +%48_3
B’ I _ 0201 ' Vakif Leasing's total leasing
i receivables
2016 1,548,067 ! increased by 48.3% to
| TRY 2,788,516 Thousand.

2014

CREDITS OBTAINED

2018 2,521,632

2016 1,465,056

2015 I — 1,316,237

1,024,360

+%47.9

Vakif Leasing's total loans compared to
the previous year

It increased by 47.9% to

TRY 2,521,632 Thousand.

2014
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (THOUSAND TRY)

2018

- I — 247,159 +%20.5

2016 170,103 . Vakif Leasing's total shareholders
i equity increased 20.5% to

i TRY 247,159 Thousand.
2015 I _ 143,644

104,972

2014

GROSS PROFIT/LOSS (THOUSAND TL)

g-%20.6

i Vakif Leasing's gross operating profit
i decreased by 20.6% to
i TRY 22,410 Thousand.

28,235

NET PROFIT (THOUSAND TRY)

2018

- l— +%184

2016 Vakif Leasing's net profit increased

i by 18.4 percent year on year to
_ | TRY 40,055 Thousand
2015 :

(3,863)

2014
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PRIMARY RATIOS

Active Profitability Ratio (ROA) - (Period Profit - Loss / Average Active)

NPL Ratio - Receivables on the subordinate (gross) / (Receivables under the gross (+) Finance lease receivables)

Equity Profitability Ratio (ROE) - (Net Profit / (Loss) / (Average Equity)
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 (BALANCE SHEET)

{Amounts expressed in Turkizh Lica (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Audited

Current Perlod
ASSETS 31 December 118
Nale TL Fi Todal_

L Finamcisl Assets (Net) 4 13213 160400 173832
(N ] Cash And Cash Bqusvalents 2708 160400 163108
1.2 Fenancisl Assets a1 Fair Value Through Profit o Loss. . . .
L3 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehessive Income L3517 10,507
14 Fisancasl Assots Memsad Al Amentioad Cost = s
L5 Denvative Fmamcial Assets -
1.6 Now-Performung Financial Assets -
L7 Specific Provisions [ Expected Loss Provisions (-) . . .
. LAVANE (Net) 540307 LMI4,56H  IHGSEES
1 Factoring Receivables - = -
211 Descoumted Factoning Recervables (Met)
212 Ouherr Factoring Receivables = -
L FINANCE LOANE = - =
221 Consumer Loans
222 Credi Cards
223 Conumereas] lstalisent Loans - - -
3 Leaving Transsctions L 3. ME  1LIR4I08  17BE.L1E
231 Receivables from Leasing Transactions (Met) 491,995 2021677 2,513,672
2310 Financisl Lease Receivables GE5.ME  2XEL10G 2,936,354
23012 Operational Lease Rocoavables - - -
23013 Uneanwed Income (-) (I63.253) (259429} (422.581)
232 I Under i Lo 110,135 121,294
23113 Advances Caven lor Leasang Traseactioss 25,843 130852 146, 594
234 (nher Recenvables Relsted to Leasing Transactions 5370 1,544 6,904
24 DOUBTFUL RECETVARLES (Net) 5 15,008 60,160 75,168
2401 Thustafal Factoring Receivables - = -
242 Doubafal Finssce Loass - . -
243 Dosbafal Lease Receivables 27004 129,048 156047
244 Specific Provisions (-) (11.995) (68,943} (3097E)
FE ] Expected Loss Provisioss (<) = = -
. SHAREHOLDING INVESTMENTS -
31 Asvociates (Net) =
AL Valuanos by Bquity Method -
3112 Usconsolidsted =
3z Subsidiaries (Net) =
311 Umconsohdsted Fimancial Parinerships -
3122 Now-Consolidated Now-Finsscal Partnershaps -
L] Jeintly Centrolled Partnerships (Joist Ventures)h (Net) -
330 Valutios by Equiry Method -
3132 Usconsolidsted . -
w. TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) L 20,543 20,543
v, INTANGIBELE ASSETS (Net) ? 23 211
VI INVESTMENT PROPERTIES {Net} = =
VI  CURRENT PERIOD TAX ASSET - -
VIIL  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 2 1348 1246
X OTHER ASSETS 1w 4,710 9,454 14,574

SUBTOTAL GIMLETE 1484612 5085293
X ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net)) EY FET ] 3
(1] Hehd for resale X0 i)
Lo Discontinued Operations - -

TOTAL ASSETS G901 3 4R4622 3045518

The accompanying notes set out on pages 14 to 61 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 (BALANCE SHEET)

{Amounts expressed in Turkizh Lica (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Andited
Prior period
ASSETS Note 31 Deeensher 2007
T ko Tatal

L CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS and CENTRAL BANK = - =
. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFIT OR LOSS (Net)
21 Fimzncial Assets Held for Trading . .
23 Fimancial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss = =
23 Dervvative Financial Assets Held for Trading - = -
. BANKS 4 1072 109 890 11062
Iv. RECEIVABLES FROM REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS . . -
V. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net) 4 G4 - 064
VL FACTORING RECEIVABLES - - -
6.1 Dhscounted Factoning Reocivables - -
610 Damestic . .
612 Forewgn . .
6.1.3 Uneamed Income (-) 5 -
6.2 Caher Factoring Receivables - -
621 Damestic . .
621  Foreign - -
VIL FINANCE LOANS - -
11 Comsumer Loans - -
12 Credn Cands
13 Commercial Instalment Loans - - -
VIIL.  LEASE RECEIVABLES E AT4ME LADE,IS6  1ER0,201
&1 Receivables from Leasing Tramsactionm 44540 1186317 LTEORSR
811 Finaneial Lease Receivables G02ATE 1 AS5M3 2058 A21
412 Oporational Lease Recoivables - - -
813 Unsamed Income (-) (137957 (13626 (297.503)
82 Assets o Be Leased 6776 48,748 55,524
83 Advances Given for Leasing Tramsactions 27 61,081 AL B
X, OTHER RECEIVABLES 4,906 86 502
X HUBTFUL RECEIVABLES B nas LIRS0 4068
101 Daubiful Factoring Receivables . . .
.2 Doubtful Fimance Loans . s .
0.3 Doubiful Lease Receivables 62,084 11470 173,554
104 Specific Provisions (-} (086 (BEE200 (119485
XL HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCTAL ASSETS - B -
1.1 Fair Value Hedge
1.2 Cash Flow Hedge
1.3 Forergn Net lnvestment Hedge
XL HELD-TOMATURITY INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Met)
XL SUBSIDIARIES (Net)
XIv, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net)
XV, JOINT VENTURES (Net) - - -
XVL  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Net) & 20,500 - 000
XVIL  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) T 458 = AH3
171 Craoduwll - . .
17.2 Oaher 453 - 483
XVIIL  PREFAID EXPENSES 10 750 1891 641
XIX. CUHRRENT PERLOD TAX ASSET - = -
xx. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS o 1030z = 130z
XXL OTHER ASSETS 1[] 41 - Il

SUBTOTAL ER20ER  LEALITY  IMEL6L
KXIL ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS (Net) ] Mg s 208
2.1 Held for resale s = 208
2.2 Driscontinued Cperations -

TOTAL ASSETS BENI%G  1B4E1TH  10E G0

Note: The prior period linancial statements and related disclosures are not restated as permitted by TFRS 9
transition rules. Since, 20017 and 2018 financial statements are prepared on different principles, 2017 financial
slatements are presented separately.

The accompanying notes set oul on pages 14 1o 61 from an integral part of these [nancial stalements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 (BALANCE SHEET)
{Amounts expressed in Turkizh Lica (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Amidited
Carrem Perisd
LIABILITIES 51 Devensber 2008
Made TF A TOTAL

L FUNDS BORROWED mn 161581 IIG00E] LAI.632
I FACTORING PAYABLES = = =
1. LEASE OBLIGATIONS - -
il Finance Lease Ohbligations - -
32 Operational Lease Chligabions - -
i3 Oither
34 Defermed Finance Lease Expenses (-} -
. DEET SECURITIES ISSUED [ 165682 - 168,652
4l Rills A8 - U856
42 Assel-Backed Securitics 65,526 . 69,526
43 Beands - - -
V. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR WHICH THE FAIR VALUE IMFFERENCE

15 RECOHGNISED THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - - -
VI DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES = = =
VIL FROVISIONS 13 4,747 . 4,747
T Restructring Provisios - - -
12 Provision for Employee Rights Linbility 4,747 4,747
T3 Gienseral Provissons. - - -
T4 Oithier Provisios - - -
VL CURRENT PERIOD TAX LIABILITY ] 18,771 = 157
| LS DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - .
X. DERT INSTRUMENTS SIMILAR TOCAFITAL - - -
XL OTHER LIABILITIES LI ] Q8173 119,831

SUHTOTAL 80140 AR P& LR
XL FAYABLES RELATED T ASSETS FOR SALE AND

DISCONTINUVED OFERATIONS{Net) - - .
Xl Held For Sale - - -
122 Discontinued Operntions - - -
XITL, EQUITY 15 MTIE - 715
[EW Pand-in Capital BT = 180 Dy
132 Capital Reserves 353 . 353
1121 Share Premsums - .
132 Share Cancellation Prodis . . .
13.2.3 Onher Capitsl Reserves s - 353
133 Acc lated Oiber Compreb Inconse that will nod be Reclassified 1o Profit or Loss 4 R+ - 16,153
it A lated Oiher Compreb Incomse that may be

Rechissified subsequently o Profit or Loss Ta5E - 1958
134 Profit Reserves 42610 = 42,610
1351 Legal Reserves TaEd . 7084
1342 Suansory Reserves - - -
1153 Extraardmary Reserves 34608 = 34,628
13154 nher Prafit Reserves . - B
136 Profitor Loss 40055 - A0,055
1161 Prsor Penods Profit Loss - - =
1362 Cuarment Period PrafivLoss 40055 = A5
137 Mot Contalling Iserests 30 - n

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY TaT.I LAER.224 EXILERE]

The accompanying notes set out on pages 14 10 6] from an integral part of these linancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Audited
Frior period
LIABILITIES Mote 31 Decamber 2017

TL FC Tatal
I DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING = = =
1L FUNDS BORROWED ] 5409 1398983 LTR4302
n FACTORING PAYABLES - - =
v, LEASE DBLIGATIONS
4.1 Finance Lease Obligations
4.2 Operational Lease Obligatioms.
43 Other
44 Deferred Finance Lease Expenses (-} - - -
V. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) I 4,921 - 4,921
il Hills 4,921 - 4,921
52 Assel-Racked Securities - -
53 Rands - - -
VL MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES 13 718 18421 N EL
VIl OTHER LIABILITIES 13 10440 44,109 24540
Vi DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIARBILITIES HELD FOR RISK MANAGEMENT - - -
81 Fair Value Hedges
82 Cash Flow Hedpes
B3 Net Foreign Investment Hedpes . . .
IX. TAXES AND DUTIES PAYARLE @ 1,287 = 1,287
X, PROVISIONS 14 3,9 - 3,779
(1IN Restnacturing Reserves - -
0.2 Reserves For Emploves Benefits 319 31
3 Dither Provisions . N .
XL DEFERRED INCOATE 1,351 1,957 3,308
XL CURRENT PERIOD TAX LIABILITY L AB56 ABE6

XL DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

XIv, SUBORDINATED LOANS - - -
SURTOTAL 426,761 1463470 &80, 231

NV, FAVABLES RELATED TO ASSETS FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS . - .

15.1 Held For Sake

152 Dicontinued Operations. - - -

NVEL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (1] 208,138 - 208,138

161 Faid-in Capital R D00 - NEr D00

162 Capital Reserves 153 . 153
1621 Share Premuums . .
1622 Share Cancellation Profits . . =
1623 Other Capital Reserves. 353 - 353

163 Accumnulated Other Comprebensive Income that will not be Reclassified 1o Profit or Loss. 16,449 - 16,449
6.4 Accumulated Other Comprebensive Income that may be Reclasaified subsequently 1o Prodit or Loss A628 . L6238
16.5 Profit Beserves 39,791 - 349,791
1651 Legal Reserves 6,256 - 6,286
1652 Seataory Reserves - - -
1633 Emraordinary Reserves 13,508 . 13,508
1654 Other Profit Reserves - - -
166 Frofit or Loss 3819 - 1819
1661 Prior Persods ProfitLoss . . .
1662  Current Peniod ProditLoss EE¥ L - 319
16.7 Mon-Controlling Interests L] - a8

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY GILEUD 4GB ATO  309E 36U

Note: The prior period linancial statements and related disclosures are not restated as permitted by TFRS 9
transition rules. Since, 2017 and 2018 financial statements are prepared on different principles, 2017 financial
slatements are presented separately.

The accompanying notes sel oul on pages 14 1o 61 [rom an integral part of these linancial stalements.

4



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 6 1

I/ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited
Carrent Period
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 31 Docember28if
Node TL FC Tatal
I TRREVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - -
1. HEVOCARLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - -
T COLLATERALS RECEIVED n £446,023 18,204,684 13,740,707
. COLLATERALS GIVEN . . -
V. COMMITMENTS kL 405,112 SiF T4 12,986
A1 Imevocable Commitments 352,393 135,445 487,838
52 Fevocable Commitments 50,719 IT4A29 425,148
RF 8 | Lease Commitments 0,719 T4 40 425,148
52011 Firance Lease Commatments 0,719 374400 425,148
5211  Operational Lease Commitments . . .
522 Other Revocable Commitments = = =
LI DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
&1 Dermvalive Financal Ins for Rk M = s
(AN Fair Value Hedges = = =
612 Cash Flow Hedges
613 Met Foreign Investment Fedges =
[ Derivative Fi al | nits Held For Trading - - -
6.1l Forward Foreign Canmency Parchases Sales - -
622 Swap PurchasesSales = =
613 Put'call options = B =
614 Futures purchases/sales -
625 Ohers = = =
_VIL ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY #5951 1934,630 3,830,560
TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEAMS i, 745, 86 21,739,188 I8 484,274
Audited
Prior period
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEAS 31 December 2007
N TI. Fi Tatal
L IRREVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - -
I, REVIMABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - -
1. COLLATERALS RECEIVED n 5,044,557 12,190,606 17,235,163
. COLLATERALS GIVEN - - -
V. CONMITMENTS mn IRG,IRR 430500 TIT, 150
il Irrevocable Conimilments 235068 61,719 30T 68T
52 Hevocable Commatmients 46,330 363,182 09, 502
521 Lease Commitmsenls 46,330 363,182 09, 502
5211 Fmance Lease Commitnents A6, 330 363,182 S0 502
5212 Operatzonal Lease Commuitments - - -
522 Onber Revocable Commitments - -
VI DERIVATIVE FINANUIAL INSTRUMENTS - -
[ ] Drerivative Finaseial lestruments for Risk Management - -
[AN] Fair Valoe Hedges - -
612 Cash Flow Hedges - -
613 Net Foreign Investment Hedpes - -
6.2 Derivative Financial Instruments Held For Trading = =
621 Forward Foseagn Currency PurchasesSales - - -
622 Swap PurchasesSales - -
623 Pavcall optioas
6.2.4 Futures parchases'sales
625 Dnbers = = =
VI TTEMS HELD IN CTUSTODY Z65,019 [N 1,210,084
TOTAL OFF - BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 5,805 B6d 13,266,572 19,162,436

Mote: The prior period financial statements and related disclosures are not restated as permitted by TFRS 9

transition rules. Since, 2017 and 2018 financial statements are prepared on different principles, 2017 financial

slatements are presented separately.

The accompanying notes sel oul on pages 14 1o 61 [fom an integral part of these linancial stalements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT

AT 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2018
Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Audited
Current Fered
NOOME STATEMENT Nede | January - 31 Decomberr 2018
L OPERATING INCOME ATy
mhum e, .
L1
LLI Discounted
11X Ciher
1.2 Factorng Commission Income
121 Thscountead
112 Other
TRCOME FROM FINANCTNG LOANS
LY Tmtevest oo Bom Aoancimg keans
L4 Fees amd counnissions received fom financing loams .
LEASE INCONE T4, 4T%
1.5 Fmance Lewis Tncoas IO
L& Oiperational Lease Income .
1.7 Fees amd Commissions Heceived fom Lease Operations 4,5m
I FINANCING EXPENSES (-) (159,861)
2.1 Tterest Expemne o Punds Bomowed (122509
22 Imiepest Expense on Factomng Payables .
2.3 Titerest Fapemne of Finance Leasmg Fapomes -
24 Tmterest Expemne o Soowmscs Ivsucd (B0 5305
2% Other Inievest Experses .
24 et mmd Comamisaoss Pad 0, I52)
118 GROSS FROFIT ¢ LOSS (1+10) H.5uE
. OPERATING EXPENSES (-) & {21158y
41 Perwoanel Fxpetrcy {14470
'L Rewrrve fin cnglipre b mmmaion benclits {423)
4% Developmenl and Research Expenses -
44 Creneral plssnisivalne expeines (7. 2055)
a5 [Hhers -
V. GROSS OFERATING INCOMELOSS (I+V) A1
VL FTHER OFERATING INCOME 1T 85,127
6.1 Titerest Bncosn on Rask Deposis LRS9
62 Ttcrest bncomn on Boverse Repurchase Agrocments -
6.3 Imieresi bncomne oo Financml Assets Held for Trading
630 Inierest Income on Financal Assets ol Far Valie Through Profir o Loss
632 Trtevest bncomne on Financwl Asscts Availabde For Sak
B34 Imiepest Encomne on Financaa] Assets Held 1o Matuminy .
G4 Dhvdend lncome L
6.5 Trading Account Income =
66 Income Frean Derivative Finascial Insinments -
6.7 Fedengn Exchumge G 3.6
6.8 Oher 4,550
VIL PFROVISIONS 5 35,665)
nl Specafic Proviisons {35,865)
.2 Expected Lows Provisiss -
73 Creneral Provisions.
74 iher -
VIL  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES () 17 (1A
81 Tnpainment Losses on Securities. Portiolio -
0.1 logpaimnent Losses on Fisancial Assets s Fair Value Theough Prodil of Lo
811 logpawmsent Losses on Fmansial Assots Avaalable For Sale
B2 Tmpawment Losses on Fmancial Asscts el s Maturty
ax1 Ingpainment Losses.on Taagible Awets
821  lugubment Losses on Assels Held for Sale sl Discontinmed Operations
BXl Imparment Losses on (iher Intangible Asscts
BX4 Inypainment Losses on Subsidiaries, Associvles snd Joimt Yeniures -
:-? mﬁ From Derrvative Financa] [nsinescsis (1.023)
El Feavign Exchange Losses. *
85 Other {471)
X XET OFERATING PROFIT 7 LOSS (V.. .4V S0,37F
X INCOME RESULTED FROM MERGER -
XL SHARES FROM THE PROFITSLOSSES OF INVESTMENTS WHICH ARE VALUED USING THE EGUITY METHOD
XL GAINLOSS ON NET MONETARY POSITION -
XL PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX (IX+X+XI) ,3TE
IV, INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING OPERA TIENS (£} ¥ 10365y
14.1 Derrent Tax Charge [12A456)
143 Dieferned Tax Charge (-} -
143 Deferred Tax Denefil (4} 1093
XV, NET FROFIT FROM OONTINUING OFERATIHONS (XTI 40,015
VL OOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS .
16.1 Income Eom Assets Held for Sale
162 Giaim on Sale of Associabes, Subsid ained Joinghy © dizd Enities
163 THber Toeoine Bom Dhacou umed Operalmas
AVIL  EXPENSES FROM DISOONTINUED OPERATIONS ) -
171 Expense on Asvets Held for Slk =
172 Lies om Sake off A il and Fomily Comtrolled Entites -
173 Oiher Exp from Dhiscontimed Op B
AVIIL  PROFTT FRON maumrfutnurtnlm;nuun TARXV-XVID .
XIX.  NOOME TAX EXPENSE FROM DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS i)
121 Carrent Tax Charge
122 Dreferred Tax Charge (-} =
193 Deferred Tax Benefil (+) -
XX, XET FROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XVII+XVIIT} .
XXL  XNET FROFIT/LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (XV+XX) A%
UNCONTROLLABLE FROFIT OR LSS 1E] 40y
EARNINGS FER SHARE B.2R5E
Camings Per Share Fom Contmued Operations. BIR5E

Eamings Fer Share from Dhscontmued Operations -
The accompanying notes set out on pages 14 to 61 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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I/ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT

AT 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise stated.)

Audbied
Prior Perioil
— INCOME AND EXPENSE [TEMS HNote ! January - 31 December 2017
L OPFERATING [NCOME 142,07%
FACTORING INCOME .
11 Facloreg [stered Income
LLd Dsooumbed
112 Coiber
12 Facioring Commmamon [ncome
1L Drigoustod
122 Coiher
INCOME FROM FINANCING LOANS
13 Interes! inoomme fhom fEancing leans
14 Foei and comesmninas recend fom fmansing bass .
LEASE INCOME 143,050
1% Fance Lease Income 135042
L& Operaticsn] Lease [acome -
1.7 Foas and Commmussimm Recerved fiom Lewis Operatsons 1987
IL FINANCING EXFENSES (<) 190,048
21 Inberest Expense on Pamds Boamowed {E2 355
22 Interest Expense on Factegig Pavables -
3 Erterent Expense of Fussoe Leaung Expeosei -
4 Enberest Expense on Securities luiised [ ]
FL Oher Interest Expenses -
28 Fees and Commissions Paid (3,%04)
T GROSS FROFIT / LOSS (1410} 45,981
v, OPERATING EXPENSES (<) 119 117, Ty
4l Persomme| Expenses. {11, 205)
' el Reerve for employee termination benefits (F v
43 Dievelopment and Rescarch Expemnci -
a4 (renseral administrative expenses (6,109
45 Cithers -
V. GROSS OPERATING INCOMELOSS (IIIHIV) b i
V1L OTHER OPERATING INCOME 17 5573
:; Eopberest Income on Bank Deposits L
Inferesi Income on Revere chase .
0l Inberesi tn:mm&mimhh B
63l Eeberest Incoime on Fransisl Assets Held for Tradug
632 Enberest Income on Francial Asiets st Far Vakio Through Profit or Loss
633 Interest Income on Fiancial Assets Available For Sale
634 Inperest Income on Fimneial Assets Held to Manmity
64 Drvadend Ieoan: &
65 Tradmg Acoousl Inoome
Y| Income From Dervative Financial Insinments
652 mbazr -
645 Foreign Exchange Gains AR
67 Oiibers 16,030
VIL FROVIENIY FOR LOSSES 0N NON-FERFORMING RECEIVABLES (-) 5 {13763
VIILL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES () 1”7 (am
Rl Inpammenl Laaes om Secundses Portfolis -
B Imparment Losses om Financial Asesis at Fair Valoe Through Profil or Loas
B1.2 ImpaEment Loes om Fnascul Asesis Avadable For Sake
13 Impasmenl Loddes om Fasscal At Held o Mansy
B2 hopammenl Losses om Noa-Carrend Assels
BXl Inpamment Losses om Tangitde Assets
B2 Impaiment Loses om Assets Held for Sale and Discontimeed Operations
RT3 Inpammcnl Laoes om Cesdwall
B4 Inpammenl Losvies om Oiber Entangible Asscly
BL1S hopammenl Losses om Subsidianes, Associates and Joml Ventures
B3 Ry From Dervvabrve Fisineiad Insinemenis
B4 Foremgn Frchange [ enses -
RS Ot am
X NET OPERATING FROFIT / LOSS (Vo VI 42505
X INCOME RESULTED FROM MERGER
1 GATNLOS5 OX NET MONETARY POSTTION -
XL, FROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATHINS REFORE TAX (IX+X+XI) 41,493
X INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (8] F (M, 5463
13 Current Tax Chooge @ (LI b
132 Diefeved Tax Chadpe (<) [ Eivari]
113 D feaver] Tax Rencf (+]) .
XIv. NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XI1aX 100 1547
X¥. IRCOME FROM IHSCONTIMNUED OFERA TIONS -
151 Income fremn Assets Held for Sale
152 (e o@ Sale of Avocale, Subswhanes s Jamtly Controfied Entles
153 Ciber bnoonne froan Discontinued Chperalions
XYL EXPERSES FROM HSCONTINUED GFERATIONS (-}
16l Espene o Adiets Held foe Salke
162 Lana oo Sale of Asscmtes, Sulmadurscs and Jomily O llexd Fatitics.
163 Ciber Cagromnaes from Dincontmucd Oporations
XVIL FROFIT FROM DISOONTINU ED OFERATIONS BEFORE TARANV XV
XVIIL INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM DESCONTINUED OFERATIONS {£)
181 Ciirgenl Tax Clouge
182 Diefierved Tax Clasge (-}
183 Defierred Tax Henefe (+)
XX NET PROFIT FROM IMSCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XVITHXVIIT -
XX, UNCONTROLLARLE PROFIT OR LOSS 3,847
NET FROFIT FOR THE PERIGD (XIV-XIX=XX) i1
EARNINGE FER SHARE (L3 wans
Exrrongs Per Share from Conlwmsd Operaos o3lns
Earrmgs Per Share from Diseontiumed Operalmis -
BILUTED EARNINGS PER SILARE

Mote: The prior pericd financial statements and related disclosares are mot restated as permitied by TFRS 9 mansition rules, Since, 2007 and 2018 financial
susteEnents are prepared on different principles. 2017 financial statements sre presented sepasatcly.

The accompanying notes set out on pages 14 to 61 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENT 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

VAKIF LEASING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018

FROFIT/LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT Note Auwdited
1 Jamuaary -
31 December 2018
L CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 40,015
1. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRILE]
n Tiemss ihat may be Reclassifieod subsequently to Profit or Loss [r ]
AN | Tangshle Asseis Revaluation Increases Diecreases -
1.2 Ietangible Assets Revaluation Incresses Decreases -
113 Emplovee Benefits Re-Measaring Loss Tneonse 14 (370)
T4 Oaher Comprehensive Income that will net be Reclssafied to Profit or Loss .
TS Taxes rebated with Comprehensive Income that will not be Reclssified so Profit or Loss T4
11 Ttenys that may be Reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss 1AM
221 Foreign Exchange Differences for Foreign Currency Transactions -
2.1 Financial Assets for Whach the Far Valoee Dhfference is Recognased Theough Orber
Comprchensive Income
Valuation and'or Classiflcation Iscome Expenses of Fimancial Assets 2453
213 Cash Flow Hedge Income Losses. -
124 Investment Risk Hedge Income Expenses Felated 1o the Overseas Company
parS. ] Oaher Comprehensive Income that naay be Reclusified subsequently 1o Profit or Loss .
226 Taxes rebuted with Comprehensive Income that may be Reclassified subsequently 1o Profit or Loss {123}
1L TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1+11) 42045
Awdited
Prior Perlod
Noe A December 2017
I CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 33,847
1L OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,191
21 Ttenss that may be Reclssified subsequently 1o Profit or Loss (96a)
211 Tangihle Assets Revalamion Increases Diecreases -
212 Imtangible Assets Revaluation Increases Decreases =
2.1.3 Emplovee Benefits Re-Measuring Loss Tncome 14 (59
214 Onher Comprehemsive Inconse that wall not be Roclassified 1o Profit or Loss -
215 Taxes related with Comprebensive Income that will not be Reclassified 1o Profin or Loss @y
1151 Cusrent Tax Inconse Expense -
20132 Deferred Tax Income Expense [RIL]
12 Tems that may be Reclassified subsequently to Frofil or Loss 160
2Tl Foseign Exchange Differences for Foaeign Curmency Transactions -
222 Value Increases or Decreases on Assels Held for Sales 2274
223 Cash Flow Hedge Income/Losscs. .
224 Invesiment Risk Hedge Income’ Expenscs Belated to the Overscas Company
215 Onher Comprehemsive Inoonse that may be Roclassafiod subsequently 1o Profit or Loss .
226 Taxes related with Comprehensive Income that may be Reclassified subsequemtly to Profit or Loss (114}
2261 Camenl Tax Income Expemsc =
2262 Defemed Tax Income Expense (114}
I TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (T+IT) JE038

Note: The prior period financial statements and related disclosures are not restated as permitted by TFRS 9
transition rules. Since, 2017 and 2018 fnancial statements are prepared on diflerent principles, 2017 fnancial
slatements are presented separately.

The accompanying notes set oul on pages 14 1o 61 from an integral part of these financial stalements
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VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 ¢ 67

I/ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Awmdited
Current Perbod
Note 1l v - 3 December 2018
A CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
11 Operatimg Profit before Changes m Cperating Assets and Liabalnses {12,21%)
L1l leterests Received' Leasing Income 192,786
112 leerest PaidLeasing Expense -
113 Leasing Expesses (164.53T)
114 Divadend Received [LL
115 Fees and Commissions Received 4368
16 (mher Revenue CGained T840
117 Collections from Previously Written-aff Daubifisl Receivables 12,907
118  Payments 1o Personnel and Service Suppliers {14, 470)
119 Taxes Paxl =
L1 Onher (B1.216)
1.2 Changes in Opemting Assets and Liabaliises (A0E)
121 Met (Increase) Decrease m Factoring Receivables
121 Met (Increase ) Docrease m Fmance Loans -
1.21 Met (Increase) Diecrease m Lease Receivables (=0 GEA)
1.22  Met (Increase) Decrease m Caber Assets (34200
123 Met Increase{Decrease) m Facloring Payables -
123 Met Increasei{Decrease) i Lease Payables -
124 Met Increase’{Decrease) in Funds Borrowed 815,051
125 Met Increase{Decrease) in Linbilities Due -
126 Met Increase{Decrease) in Ouber Liabilines 42154
L Met Cash Provided from Opcrating Activities (23,111}
n CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2l Acquisition of Investments, Associsies and Subsidiaries
11 Disposal of Invesiments, Associaies and Subsidianies -
23 Pachases of Propenty and Egaipment 6,78 (833)
14 Diusposals of Propeny and Equipnent &7
2.5 Purchase of Invesiments Available-for-sale -
26 Sale of Investmerts Available-for-sale -
27 Purchase of Investment Securities Held to Maturity
18 Sale of Investmest Secusities Held io Maturity
10 Crher
1L Nel Cash (Used imhProvided from Investing Activities (T66)
. CASI FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
kR Cash Obtaimed froms Funds B d and Securities [ssued 207 900
32 Cash Used for Repayment of Funds Borrowed and Securities Issued (127.274)
EE lssued Capital Iestruments -
i4 Drividends Paid -
15 Payments for Finance Leases
3.6 Onher
L. Met Cash Provided from Financing Activities BOL626
™. Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash Equivalemts 24,296
V. Net Imcrease{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,45
VI Cavh aml Cash Equivalemis al Beginming of the Poriod 4 112,00
WIL Cavh aml Cash Equivalents al End ol the Period 4 163,105

The accompanying notes set out on pages 14 to 61 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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VAKIFLEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 ¢ 68

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Audited
Prior Perlod
MNaote 14 ¥ - 31 December 2017
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1.1 Operating Profit before Changes m Operating Assets and Linbilitees 30,202
L1 Ieerests Received’ Lessing Income 132,912
112 Ieaerest PaidLeasing Expepse -
113 Leasing Experses -
1.14 Divadend Received &
1.1.5 Fees and Commessions Recerved 2987
LL6 (her Income 10,204
L7 Collections from Previously Wiittes-off Doubtful Beceivables 5,564
LLE Payments 1o Personnel and Service Suppliers (11,215)
119 Taxes Pawd -
1610 Onher (LI0856)
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabiliies (434120
L2l Met (Increase) Decrexse m Factoring Receivables -
1.2 et (Increase) Decrease m Finance Laans -
1.23 Net (Increase} Decrease in Lease Receivables (325,543)
1.24 Net (Increase} Diecrease m nher Assets 2938
125 Net Increase(Decrease) m Factoring Payables -
126 Net Increase{Decrease) m Lease Payables =
127 et Increase/(Decrease) m Funds Borrowed 244,12
1.28 Met Increase:{Decrease) m Liabilstics Drae -
119 et Increase (Decrease) im Oiber Liabilines 14,500
L Nt Cash Provided from Operating Aetivithes (13,2100
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Acquisition of levestneenls, Assocktes and Subssdianes -
2.2 Disposal of Investments, Associaies and Subsidiaries -
2.3 Purchases of Property and Equipment 189 LEE
24 Dhzposals of Property and Equspment (131}
25 Purchase of Investmenits Available-for-sale .
2.6 Sale of Investmenls Avaikable-for-sale -
2.7 Parchase of Investment Securities Held 1o Matunty -
2.8 Sale of Ivestment Securities Held to Maturity -
29 Ciher -
L Mot Cash (Used in)/Provided from Investing Activities 244
. NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
il Cash Obtaned from Fumds Bocrowed and Sccumties lssued 93,091
iz Cash Uscd for Repayment of Fusds Bomowed and Secuntics [ssucd .
L ] Tssped Capatal Instruments -
34 Dhividends Paid -
35 Paymeents for Finance Leases -
ER Other =
AL Net Cash Provided from Financimg Activities 23,091
Iv. EfTect of Change in Foreign Exchange Kate on Cash ansd Cazh Equivalents 14,655
V. Nel Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents S53R0
VL Cash and Cash Equivalents st Beginning of the Period 4 16,680
VIIL Cash and Cash Equivalents st End of the Perlod 4 112,060

Note: The prior period lnancial statements and related disclosures are not restated as permitted by TFRS 9
ransition rules. Since, 2017 and 2018 financial statements are prepared on different principles, 2017 financial
statements are presented separately.

The accompanying notes set oul on pages 14 1o 61 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 69

/' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Tutarlar aksi belirtilmedikge bin Tork Lirass (*“TL™) olarak ifade edilmistir.)

Auddited Auwmdited
Current period Prior period
(31 Drecember 2008K") (31 December 2017)
L DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT (%)
11 CURRENT PERIOD FROFIT 378 42,393
1.2 TAXES AND DUES PAYABLE (-} (10.363) (8.546)
121 Corpomse Tax (Income Tax) (12,546) (3.917)
122 Witholding Tax - -
123 Other taxes and dues 2093 (4.629)
A NET PERIOD PROFIT (1.1 - 1.2y 40,012 ELE DL
1.3 PRIOR YEARS® LOSSES ()
14 FIRST LEGAL RESERVE (-}
1.5 OTHER STATUTORY EESERVES NEEDED TO BE KEFT IN THE
COMPANY (-) (2.03)
B TISTRIBUTABLE NET PERICD FROFIT [(A-1.3+1.4+1.5)] (==} 7022 ELE DL
1.6 FIRST IMVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (<)
161 To Cramers of Ordinary Shares
1.6.2 To Cramers of Preferred Siocks
Las T Owners of Preferred Siocks (Pre-comptive Rightsh
L4 To Profit Sharing Bonds
Las T Owners ol the profit loss Shanng Certificates
1.7 DIVIDEND TO PERSONNEL (-)
13 DIVIDEND TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-}
1.9 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLIERS (-)
1.9.1 To Crwmers of Ordmary Shares

1,92 To Oweers of Preferred Siocks

193 To Cramers of Preferred Siocks (Pre-emptive Righis)
194 Tor Profit Sharing Bends

1935 Tor Owners of the profit Joss Sharing Certificares

(L] SECOND LEGAL RESERVE (=)
1.1 STATUS RESERVES (-)
112 EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES

113 OTHER RESERVES
114 SPECTAL FUNDS

IL DISTRIEUTION FROM RESERVES
21 DISTRIBUTED RESERVES

22 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (<)

2.3 SHARE TO SHAREHOLDERS (-)
2% To Crwners of Ordimary Shares

2.3 To Oweers of Preferred Stocks

233 To Oweers of Preferred Siocks (Pre-cmptive Rights)
234 To Profit Sharing Bends

215 Tor Crwmers oof the prodit loss Sharing Certificates

24 SHARE TO PERSONNEL {-)
18 SHARE TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-}
1. EARNINGS PER SHARE
il TOOWNERS OF STOCKES (TRY)
3z TOOWRERS OF STOUKS (% )
31 TOOWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (TRY)
14 TOOWHERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS { % )
™. DIVIDEND FER SHARE
41 TOOWNERS OF STOUKS (TRY)
43 TOOWNERS OF STOCKS { % )
41 TOOWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (TRY)
44 TOOWNERS OF PREFERRED STOUKS (% )

(*) The Company's General Assembly has not been held vet and in the profit distribution table only distributable profits las been
specified

(**)  According to the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA), income related to deferred tax assets cannot be considered
cash or intermal resources, and therefore the portion of the period profit resulting from these assets should not be included in dividends
and cagital contributions. As of 31 December 2008 the Company has TRY 2,093 of deferred tax income resulting from deferred tax
assels (31 December 20017: None).

The accompanying noles set oul on pages 14 1o 61 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP
Brief history

Vakaf Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi (“the Company™) was established on 15 September 1988 and
operates in accordance with “Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies Law™ published on
the Official Gazette no. 28496 dated 13 December 2012 and “Regulation on Principles for Establishment
and Operations of Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies™ of Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency (“BRSA™).

The Company is a subsidiary of Tirkive Vakiflar Bankasi Tiick Anonim Ortakhifn (“Vakifbank™) and
the 22.54% of the outstanding shares of the Company are publicly traded at Istanbul Stock Exchange
(“ISE™). The Company has no preferred stock.

Vakif Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri Limited Sirketi (“Vakaf Sigorta™) was established on 3 January 1993
to act as an insurance intermediary between Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi and the customers of the
Company for the insurance of the asscts subject to finance lease agreements, Vakif Sigorta gives
insurance consultancy, risk management and damage controlling both in Turkey and abroad. Vakif
Sigorta also gives brokerage services between insurance and reinsurance companics. The Company
owns 84.85% of the outstanding shares of Vakif Sigorta and Vakif Sigorta’s financial statements are
fully consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company and Valkaf
Sigorta together will be referred as “Group™ in this report.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has 75 employees; 74 at the Company, 1 at Vakif Sigorta
{31 December 2017: 58 at the Company, 74 at Vakaf Sigorta, in total 75),

The registered address of the Company is as follows:

Biiyiikdere Caddesi Matbuat Sokak
Gazeteciler Sitesi No:13

34394 Esentepe - Sishi

Istanbul Turkey

Ownership Structure

The ultimate shareholder having direct or indirect control over the shares of the Company is Vakifbank
Group. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the share capital and ownership structure of the Company

are as follows:
31 December 2018

Share Amount  Share Percentage
Shareholder (TL) (%)
Vakifbank 82,197 58.71
Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi 21,909 15.65
Public Shares(*) 31,553 22.54
Other 4,341 310
Paid-in capital 140,000 100

" The ratio is calculated from (he shares of the Company registered at Istanbul Takas ve Saklama Bankasi

A5, (“Takasbank™).
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ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 7 1

I/ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

31 December 2017
Share Amount  Share Percentage

Shareholder (TL) (%)
Vakifbank 63,996 58.71
Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi 17,057 15.65
Public Shares(*) 24 566 2254
Other 3,381 3.10
Paid-in capital 109,000 100

© The ratio is calculated from the shares of the Company registered at Istanbul Takas ve Saklama Bankasi
A5, (“Takasbank™).

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis Of Presentation

2.1.1 Accounting standards

The Company prepared accompanying financial statements in accordance with to the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ and the “Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented
by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and on Financial Statements to be announced
to Public” published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861 and Turkish
Accounting Standards published by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Institte
(POAAS), ("TAS/TFRS™) and other regulations, communiqués, and circulars announced by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA") (all together “the reporting standards™) in
respect of accounting and financial reporting.

The Regulation on Amending the Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies promulgated in Official Gazette No. 30409
dated 02 May 2018 requires the format and contents of financial statements be changed effective 30
September 2018 so that they are prepared in line with TFRS 9. Financial statements and footnotes of
previous periods were not restated, as per the TFRS 9 provisions related to the transition, and thus the
previous period’s figures are represented in prior format, Details related to first time adoption to
TFRS 9 are provided in Note 2.2.4, Accounting policies and valuation bases used in the 2018 and 2017
periods are provided in the footnotes below.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018are approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issuc as at 14 February 2019, The General
Assembly and / or legal authoritics have the discretion of making changes in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements afier their issuance,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis as adjusted
for the effects of inflation that lasted until 31 December 2004, except for the available for sale financial
assets and assets held for sale which are measured at their fair values unless reliable measures are
available.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.1.2 Additional paragraph for convenience translation into English

The differences between accounting principles, as described in the preceding paragraphs and accounting
principles generally aceepted in countries in which these financial statements are to be distributed and
Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) have not been quantified in these financial statements,
Accordingly, these financial statements arc not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles
senerally aceepted in such countrics and TFRS,

2.1.3 Correction of financial statements during hyperinflation period

Financial statements were subject to inflation accounting in accordance with “Turkish Accounting
Standards Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 297) until 31 December 2004,
The BRSA announced a declaration with a decision dated 28 April 2005 that hyperinflationary period
is over and inflation accounting has ceased as of | January 2003,

2.1.4 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforccable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.1.5 Going concern
The Company prepared its financial statements considering the going concern principal.
2.1.6 Currency used

Financial statements of the Company have been presented using the currency (functional currency) of
the economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial position and the results of
operations of the Company have been presented in the Turkish Lira (“TL").

2.1.7 Critical Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions

Preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and judgments regarding the reported
amount of assets and liabilities or contingent assets and liabilities and reported amount of income and
expenses of the related period. Such estimates and judgements are based on the Company’s best
estimates regarding current events and transactions, however, the actual results may differ from these
cshimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting
cstimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future years affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policics that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are described in the following notesir:
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The provision for total financial leasing receivables, which is determined by valuing the financial leasing
receivables, is determined in a way that includes the doubtful receivables in the Company’s financial
leasing receivables portfolio. The Company has set this provisionin accordance with BRSA
Communiqué on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans of Leasing, Factoring and
Consumer Finance Companies (“Provisions Communiqué”™) published in Official Gazette No. 28861,
dated 24 December 2013,

According to the Communiqué, specific provisions are set in the following proportions: minimum 20%
after deducting the effect of collaterals for lease receivables that are overdue between 151 and 240 days,
minimum 50% after deducting the effect of collaterals for lease receivables that are overdue between
240 and 365 days and 100% after deducting the effect of collaterals for lease receivables that are overdue
for more than one vear.

In accordance with the related Provisions Communiqué, the Company also recognises specific provision
even if the overdue days are less than the days stated above or receivables are not over due at all, by
taking into account all the existing data regarding the creditor and based on the principals of reliability
and prudence as indicated in the Communiqué on the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements published i Official Gazette No. 25702, dated 16 January 2005, According to the
Communiqué, the Company might not take into account the collateral amounts while determining the
specific provision mentioned above,

After the collection of receivables for which provision has been set aside, the provision amounts are
reversed and all of the related receivables are deducted from assets. During the collection of a receivable
related to a previous year's provisions, the related collection amount is credited to "Other Operating
Income" account as income.

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets can be recorded as much as the said tax benefit is probable. Amount of taxable profits
and possible tax benefits in the future is based on medium term business plan and expectations prepared
by the company. The business plan is based on rational expectations of the company under current
circumstances.

Fair value measurements of the share certificates

Fair value measurements of the share certificates are valued for determination of fair value by
independent valuation instutions once a year.

2.2 Changes In Accounting Policies
2.2.1 Comparatives and restatement of prior year financial statements

According to section 15 of paragraph 2 of Article 7 of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standards
published in the Official Gazette numbered 299353 dated 19 January 2017, it is not compulsory 1o restate
previous period information and if the previous period information is not restated, the difference
between the book value of 1 January 2018 at the date of initial application should be reflected in the
opening balance of equity. The prior period financial statements and related disclosures are not restated
as permitted by TFRS 9 transition rules. Since, 2017 and 2018 financial statements are prepared on
different principles, 2017 financial statements are presented separately..

2.2.2 Changes in accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period’s financial statements
are restated accordingly. There is no major change in the accounting policies of the Company in the
current year,

17
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.2.3 Change In Accounting Estimates And Errors

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively in the period of the
change.if the change affects that period only; or the period of the change and future periods, if the change
affects both. There has not been any significant change in the accounting estimates of the Company in
the current year. Material prior vear errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods

2.2.4 Amendments In Standards And Interpretations

The accounting policies accepted to be the bases when the financial statements related to the accounting
period ending 31 December 2018 are prepared were implemented in line with the new and adjusted
TFRS standards in effect as of 01 January 2019 and the standards used in the previous year, except for
the TFRYK interpretations. The effects of these standards and interpretations on the financial position
and performance of the Group have been explained in the related paragraphs.

a)  Standards, amendments and interpretations applicable as at 31 December 2018
Information on the effects of the new TAS/TFRS on financial statements:

a)  utle of TAS/TFRS,

b)  changing the accounting policy in line with the relevant transition provisions, if any,

¢)  information on the accounting policy change,

d)  information on transition provisions, if any,

e)  effects of transition provisions on future periods, if any,

f) if possible, the relevant adjustment amounts of the current and each previous period:
i should be provided for each affected financial statement item and
ii.  basic eamnings per share and diluted earnings per share should be recalculated if the

Company falls under the “TAS 33, Earnings Per Share” standard,

g} if possible, adjustment amounts of the periods prior to the periods not provided, and

h)  information should be provided on the events that caused this situation if retrospective application
is not possible for any period(s), and information should be provided regarding the starting date
and method of application of the accounting policy change.

- TFRS 9, *Financial instruments’; cffective from annual periods beginning on or afier
1 January 2018, This standard replaces the guidance in TAS 39, It includes requirements on the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected
credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model.

Information on TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard

The TFRS 9 Financial Instruments standard regarding the classification and measurement of financial
asscts, published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority in Official
Gazette No. 29953 dated 19 December 2017, replaced the TAS 39 Finanecial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement standard as of 01 January 2018,

TFRS 9 sets out the new principles for the classification and measurement of financial instruments,
impairment for credit risk on financial assets and hedge accounting.

18
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2- PRINCIPLES ON THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

il.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

According to [FRS 9, each financial asset will be classified as either amortized cost, fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL™), or fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) in accordance
with the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics. The business model is determined
by the Company in terms of the manner in which assets are managed and their performance is reported.

Frior to TFRS 9 S Within the scope of TFRSS®
.............. Measarement bases | o Evckiriloe | Motsrementbases 1 Bookvaloe
Fi aniets | 21 Decembser 2007 a1 v 2N
Cash and Cash Equivalents and |
Banks Amaortised cost | 112062 | Amontised cost 102,062
Fimancial sssets for which | Financeal assets for which
the fair value difference is I the fair value difference is
recogniscd through other | recognised through other
Available-for-sale Fmancial Asscts | comprebemsave meome 1 8,064 | comprchensive imcome B.064
|
Funans sl Ina!g |r:<.'rn!lh Amoatisee cost : 1830201 | Amonsed cost 1,580 201

The Company reclassified the financial assets in new categories as per TFRS 9 without making any
changes in measurement bases since the previous categories based on TAS 39 were discontinued, and
the reclassification does not have any impact on equitics.

b, Statement of financial sitnation assessment of financial assets during the transition to TFRY 9
Book valee prier o | HRemeasure
[ ~ . . o TFRS9|  Becluwsifications|  ments| TFRS 9 book value
Fimancial Asets . . M Degember2n?) | L 01 January 201
Cashand CoshEquivabends .
Book value withn the scopeof TAS 3 0 | nieez| 0 S ] — .
Book value withan the scopeof TPRSS - - - e
Fimancial aszets far which the fair value difference s |
reeognised through other comprehensive imcome B R | S
Boak vahee within the scope of TAS 39 (Available-for-sale |
Seewswes) L2 S .1 S d
Boak vahee within the scope of TFRS & 1 I __B064
Fimancial leasing receivables . - ] | . S
Book valee within the scope of TAS 39~~~ 1 0000 | T e I
Beok valee within the scope of TFRS 9 . = 1,580,201

c.  Impairment Provisions

With the Regulation on Amending the Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of
Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies promulgated in Official Gazette No. 30409
dated 02 May 2018, companies are granted the right to allocate an expected loan loss provision as per
TFRS 9 provided they notify the BRSA, and the regulation shall become effective on 30 September
2018. Accordingly, the Group did not choose to implement the expected loan loss provision calculation
maodel for receivables from lease transactions as per TFRS 9 and as stated in Article 6/A of the relevant
regulation, and as they did in previous periods, they allocated a provision as per Article 6 of the
Regulation on Amending the Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies published by the BRSA in Official Gazette No. 28861
dated 24 December 2013 for receivables from leasing transactions as of 31 December 2018,

d.  Equity impact af transifion to TFRS 9

According 1o section 15 of paragraph 2 of Article 7 of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standards
published in the Official Gazette numbered 29953 dated 19 January 2017, it is not compulsory to restate
previous period information and if the previous period information is not restated, the difference
between the book value of 1 January 2018 at the date of initial application should be reflected in the
opening balance of equity, The explanations about the initial application effects of TFRS 9 on equity
presented below.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Group reclassified the financial assets in new categories as per TFRS 9 without making any changes
in measurement bases since the previous categories based on TAS 39 were discontinued, and the
reclassification does not have any impact on equities.

The Group continues to allocate impairment provisions as per Article 6 of the Regulation on Amending
the Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies published by the BRSA in Official Gazette No. 28861 dated 24 December 2013,

- TFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’; cffective from annual periods beginning
on or after | January 2018, IFRS 15, *‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ is a converged
standard from the TASB and FASE on revenue recognition. The standard will improve the
financial reporting of revenue and improve comparability of the top line in financial statements
oloball.

- Amendment to TFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2018. These amendments comprise clarifications of the
guidance on identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property
and the principal versus agent assessment (gross versus net revenue presentation), New and
amended illustrative examples have been added for cach of those arcas of guidance. The IASB
has also included additional practical expedients related to transition to the new revenue standard.

Amendments to TFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’ regarding the implementation of IFRS 9,
‘Financial Instruments’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
These amendments introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. The
amended standard will:

- give all companies that issue insurance contracis the option to recognise in other
comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when
IFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard is issued; and
give companies whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance an optional
temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 until 2021, The entities that defer the
application of IFES 9 will continue to apply the existing financial instruments standard [AS
39,

Amendment to TAS 40, ‘Investment property’ relating to transfers of investment property;
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, These amendments clarify
that to transfer to, or from, investment properties there must be a change in use. To conelude if a
property has changed use there should be an assessment of whether the property meets the
definition. This change must be supported by evidence.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Amendments to TFRS 2, *‘Share based pavments’ on clarifying how to account for certain
types of share-based payment transactions; effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, This amendment clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled, share-based
payments and the accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-
scttled. I also introduces an exception to the principles in TFRS 2 that will require an award to
be treated as if it was wholly equity-settled, where an emplover is obliged to withhold an amount
for the employee’s tax obligation associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to
the tax authority..

. IFRS 1, ‘First time adoption of TFRS’, regarding the deletion of short-term exemptions
for first-time adopters regarding TFRS 7, TAS 19 and TERS 10,

. TAS 28, *Investments in associates and joint venture’ regarding measuring an associate
or joint venture at fair value.

- TFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’; effective from annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2018, This TFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions
or parts of transactions where there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt is made as well
as for situations where multiple payments/receipts are made. The guidance aims to reduce
diversity in practice.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at 31 December
2018:

- Amendment to TFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’; cffective from annual periods beginning on
or after | January 2019, This amendment confirm that when a financial liability measured at
amortised cost is modified without this resulting in de-recognition, a gain or loss should be
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between
the original contractual cash flows and the modified cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. This means that the difference cannot be spread over the remaining life of the
instrument which may be a change in practice from TAS 39,

- Amendment to TAS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint venture”; ¢ffective from annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, These amendments clarify that companies account
for long-term interesis in associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using
TFRS 9.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- TFRS 16, ‘Leases’; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with
carlier application permitted if TFRS 15°Revenue from Contracts with Customers” is also applied.
This standard replaces the current guidance in TAS 17 and is a farreaching change in accounting
by lessees in particular. Under TAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinetion between a
finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). TFRS 16 now requires
lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right of use asset” for
virtually all lease contracts. The TASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees.
For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the TASB has updated the
cuidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation
of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new
accounting model for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees.
Under TFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

The Group started work to comply with TFRS 16 Leasing Standards, which will become effective
on 1 January 2019, and the work was still in process as of 31 December 2018, As of 1 January
2019, ransition to TFRS 16 was not expected to have a major impact on financial statements.

- TFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’;effective from annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 20019. This TFRIC clarifics how the recognition and measurement
requirements of TAS 12 *Income taxes’, are applicd where there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The IFRS 1C had clarified previously that TAS 12, not TAS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent
liabilitics and contingent asscts’, applies to accounting for uncertain income tax treatments.
TFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax asscts and
liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment, An uncertain tax treatment is any tax
treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that treatment will be
accepted by the tax authority, For example, a decision to claim a deduction for a specific expense
or not to include a specific item of income in a tax return is an uncertain tax treatment if its
acceptability is uncertain under tax law. TFRIC 23 applies to all aspects of income tax accounting
where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss,
the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates.

TFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’jeffective from annual periods beginning on or afier
| January 2021, This standard replaces TFRS 4, which currently permiis a wide variety of
practices in accounting for insurance contracts. TFRS 17 will fundamentally change the
accounting by all entities that issue insurance contracts and investment contracts with
discretionary participation features.

Early adoption of standards
The Company did not early-adopt new or amended standards at 31 December 2018. Considering
the financial statement items of the Company, it is deemed that the prospective changes except

adoption of TFRS 9 would have no significant effect to over the financial position and
performance of the Company.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
Consolidation principals applied

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiary on the basis set out in sections below. Financial statements of the consolidated subsidiary are
prepared as of the same date as consolidated financial statements,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power
to govemn the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated interim financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company owns 84 85% of Vakif Sigorta, As the Company has
the power to control the operations of the Vakif Sigorta, the financial statements of Vakaf Sigorta have
been fully consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements,

Non-controlling interest
The non-controlling interest in the net asset of the subsidiary of the Company is presented separately in

the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interest comprises the amount of those non-controlling interests at
the date of the first combination and the changes in equity since the date of the combination.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies translated
by using year-end exchange rates of Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey's bid rates. Gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign currency exchange rates used on 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

UsD 5.2609 37719
EUR 60280 3.5155
CNY 00,7620
GBP 6.6528 5.0803
CHF 5.3352
YEN 4.7547 3.3421
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, deposits
at banks and highly liquid and insignificant risk of change in the value of the investments with maturity
periods of less than threec months.

Financial leasing transactions
i) As lessor

Assets which are subject to leasing transactions are presented as a reccivable which equals to the
investment amount made for the related leasing transactions. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a periodic constant rate of return. The
leasing payments received are deducted from the gross leasing investments by reducing the principal
and unearned finance income.

i) As lessee

The assets which is obtained by financial leasing is capitalized with the lower of fair value of the asset
at the beginning of the leasing period afier the deduetion of the tax benefits and incentive or discounted
value of minimum lease payments at the date. The principal payments of the lease are illustrated as
liability and decreases with the payments. Interest payments are reflected to income statement during
the financial leasing period. Assets obtained by the financial leasing are subject to depreciation over the
useful life of the asset.

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The lease receivables provision for the impairment of investments in direct finance leases is established
based on a credit review of the receivables portfolio. The Company has set this provision in accordance
with BRSA Communiqué on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans of Leasing,
Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies (“Provisions Communiqué”™) published in Official Gazette
No. 28861, dated 24 December 2013, According to the Communiqué, specific provisions are set in the
following proportions: minimum 20% after deducting the effect of collaterals for lease receivables that
are overdue between 151 and 240 days, minimum 50% after deducting the effect of collaterals for lease
receivables that are overdue between 240 and 365 days and 100% after deducting the effect of collaterals
for lease receivables that are overdue for more than one year.

In accordance with the related Provisions Communiqué, the Company also recognises specific provision
even if the overdue days are less than the days stated above or receivables are not over due at all, by
taking into account all the existing data regarding the creditor and based on the principals of reliability
and prudence as indicated in the Communiqué on the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements published in Official Gazette No. 25702, dated 16 January 2005, According to the
Commumiqué, the Company might not take into account the collateral amounts while determining the
specific provision mentioned above.

After the collection of receivables for which provision has been set aside, the provision amounts are
reversed and all of the related receivables are deducted from assets. During the collection of a receivable
related to a previous year's provisions, the related collection amount is credited to "Other Operating
Income" account as income.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Explanations on the write-off policy:

As a consequence of the tracking process, loans with low/no collection possibility and non-performing
loans arc removed from assets as per a decision from the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies and recognises securities under “Financial Assets for Which the Fair Value
Difference is Recognised Through Other Comprehensive Income™ and subsidiaries.

The Group classifies and recognises financial assets under “Financial Assets for Which the Fair Value
Difference is Recognised Through Other Comprehensive Income™. ™. The financial assets are recognized
or derecognized in accordance with the “Recognition and Derecognition” principles defined in Section
3 related to the classification and measurement of financial instruments of the "TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments” standard published in the Official Gazette No. 29953 dated 19 January 2017 by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA). At initial recognition, financial assets
are measured at fair value. In the case of financial assets are not measured at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs are added or deducted to/from their fair value.

The Group recognizes a financial assct in the financial statement when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. When the Group first recognizes a
financial asset, the business model and the characteristics of contractual cash flows of the financial asset
are considered by management.

(i) Financial Assets for Which the Fair Value Difference is Recognised Through Other
Comprehensive Income

Financial assets for which the fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive income
investment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted bid prices, or amounts derived from cash
flow models on the financial statements as of the balance sheet date.

The Group has security investments for which they do not have controlling power or significant activity
and which represent a share of capital. Securities representing the share of capital are recognised at fair
value if they are traded in organised markets and/or their fair value is determined in a reliable manner.
If they are not traded in organised markets and their fair value is not determined in a reliable manner,
they are reflected on financial statements at cost after the depreciation provision is deducted,

When recognising them in financial statements for the first time, the Company may choose to present
future changes in the fair value of investments in an equity instrument which is not held for commercial
purposes under other comprehensive income. In this case, dividends earned from the said investment
are transferred to financial statements as profit or loss.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Property and equipment

In the accompanying consolidated financial statements, tangible assets acquired before 1 January 2005
are measured at cost restated for the effects of inflation at 31 December 2004 less accumulated
depreciation. Tangible assets acquired after 1 January 2005 are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation.

The Group decided to pursue the propertics for use according to their fair values by separating the land
and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment”™ . As a result of the valuation performed bu an independent appraisal company, revaluation
difference of TRY 16596 (31 December 2017: 16,595 TL) after deferred tax effect 1s accounted under
the accumulated other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

As of 31 December 2018, the conformity between net book value that was calculated based on the cost
of properties for use and revaluated values are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Fair Value 21,629 21,629
Met book value calculated on cost value 3,190 3,190
Before tax revaluation differences 18,439 18,439
Calculated deferred tax liability (-) 1,844 1,844
Revaluation differences - net 16,595 16,595

Gains/losses arising from the disposal of the tangible assets are calculated as the difference between the
net carrying value and the proceeds from the disposal of related tangible asscts and reflected to the
consolidated statement of income of the related period.

Maintenance and repair costs incurred in the ordinary course of the business are recorded as expense.
There are no pledges, mortgages and other encumbrances on tangible assets.

Tangible asscts are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the related assets from the date of

acquisition or the date of installation, on a straight-line basis over the cost. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Tangible assets (Continued)

The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Expected
Useful Life (Year) Depreciation
Tangible assets Rate (%)
Buildings 50 2
Furnitures and fixed assets 3 20
Motor vehicles 3 20
Other non-current assets - special costs 3 20

Intangible assets
The Group's intangible assets consist of software.

The cost of the intangible assets purchased before | January 2005 are restated from the purchasing dates
to 31 December 2004, the date the hyperinflationary period is considered to be ended. The intangible
assets purchased after this date are recorded at their historical costs.

The intangible assets are amortized based on straight line amortization method.
Assets held for resale

The assets providing the necessary conditions of being classified as the assets held for resale are
recognized with the lower of their book value and fair value less cost of sales. These assets are presented
scparately on the balance sheet and are not subjected to depreciation following the classification. To
classify an asset as asset held for resale, the sale potential of the asset (or the asset group to be disposed)
should be high and the asset should be available to immediately sell under ordinary circumstances in
sale of this kind of asscts. To have high sale potential, there should be a proper scheme for sale of the
asset {or asset group to be disposed) which is prepared by a proper administrative level and an active
sales program should be launched to complement the scheme and determine the buyers, Furthermore,
the asset should be marketed actively with a price coherent to its fair value. Various incidents and
conditions may extend the completion of the sale term to more than a year, The asset is remained to be
classified as the asset held for resale, if the reason of the delay is the incidents and conditions out of the
control of the firm, and there 15 no sufficient evidence that the firm is continuing its sales program of
the asset.

The impairment losses and profit and loss from subsequent valuation of the assets classified as the assets
held for resale are recognized on consolidated income statement
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, asseis are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or group of assets (the “cash -generating unit”™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income,

Emplovee benefits

In accordance with existing Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to make lump-sum termination
indemnities to each employee who has completed one vear of service with the Group and whose
employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or misconduct. The
computation of the liability is based upon the retirement pay ceiling announced by the Government. The
applicable ceiling amount as at 31 December 2018 is TRY 6,017.60 full TRY (31 December 2017:
5.0001.76 Full TRY) The Group provided reserve for employee severance indemnities in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements using actuarial method in compliance with the TAS.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the actuarial assumptions are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Discount rate 4.24% 4.00%
Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase 15.99% 12.32%
Estimated employee wrmover rate 1.92% 1.89%

Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase is determined based on inflation estimates of the government.
The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate afier adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation.

The Group has provided reserve for short-term employee benefits in the financial period as per services
rendered in compliance with TAS 19 - Emplovee Benefits in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements,

According to the TAS 19 that 1s revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Employee benefits{Continued)

Authority with the Communiqué published in Official Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in
the calculation of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Company, the recognition method
of the actuarial gains and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences
between actuarial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, Beginning of 1 January 2013, the
Company has recognised the actuarial gains and losses that occur in related reporting periods in the
“Statement of Comprehensive Income™ and presented in the “Extraordinary reserves™ item in the Equity
section of the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

In the consolidated financial statements, a provision is made for an existing liability resulted from past
events if it is probable that the liability will be settled and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount
of the obligation. Provisions are calculated based on the best estimates of management on the expenses
to incur as at the balance sheet date and, if matenal, such expenses are discounted to their present valucs,
If the amount is not reliably cstimated and there is no probability of cash outflow from the Group to
scttle the hability, the related hability is considered as “contingent™ and disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in consolidated financial statements.
Contingent assets are assessed continuously to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the consolidated financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements of the period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits has become
probable, the Group discloses the contingent asset in the accompanying consolidated financial
statementsr,

Income and expense recognition
Finance lease income

The values of the assets leased within the context of Financial Lease Law are shown as finance lease
receivables on balance sheet at their value determined ar the beginning of the leasing transaction. The
interest income generated by the difference between total finance lease receivable and the investment
value of the asset subject to leasing is recorded to the income statement of the period by means of
distribution of the receivables with fixed interest rate to the related periods, The interest income not
accrued in relevant period is followed under uncamed interest income,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized according to the effective interest method based on accrual
basis. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the expected cash flows of financial assets or
liabilitics during their lifetimes to their carrying values. Effective interest rate is calculated when a
financial asset or a liability is initially recorded and is not modified thereafter.

The computation of effective interest rate comprises discounts and premiums, fees and commissions
paid or received and transaction costs, which arc indispensable parts of effective interest, Transaction
costs are additional costs that are direetly related to the acquisition or disposal of financial asscts or
liabilitics.

Fees and commissions

The fees and commissions received from and paid due to finance lease operations are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the related service is rendered or received.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is ascertained,

Other income and expenses

{hther income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

Taxation

Corporate taxes

Taxable income is subject to corporate tax at 20%. This rate is applied to net income modified for certain
exemptions (like dividend income) and deductions (like investment incentives), and additions for certain
non-tax deductible expenses and allowances for tax purposes. If there is no dividend distribution
planned, no further tax charges are made.

The corporate income tax rate will be applied as 22% for the vears 2018, 2019 and 2020 regarding to
the "Law on Amendment of Certain Tax Laws and Some Other Laws" numbered 7061 and published in
the Official Gazette on 5 December 2017,

Withholding tax ratc on dividend payments, which arc made to the companics cxcept those arc
domilicied in Turkey or generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular agent, is 15%. In applying
the withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the individuals, the
withholding tax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken into account.

Appropriation of the retained earnings to capital is not considered as profit distribution and therefore is
not subject to withholding tax.

30



VAKI ERSING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 ¢ 87

/' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Taxes (Continued)

The prepaid taxes are calculated and paid at the rates valid for the carnings of the related years. The
payments can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year carnings.

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carmied forward up to five years. As at
31 December 2018, the Group has no deductible tax losses (31 December 2017: no deductible tax
losses).

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file
their tax returns until the end of the 25th day of the 4th month following the close of the accounting year
to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the year that follows the
date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related
accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.

Deferred iaxves

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized, in accordance with TAS 12- fncome Taxes, on all
taxable temporary differences arising between the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their corresponding balances considered in the calculation of the tax base, except for the
differences not deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition of assets and liabilities which affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit.

The Company uscs a tax rate of 22% considering deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities in deferred
tax calculation.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported as net in the consolidated financial statements only if
the Group has legal right to present the net value of current vear tax assets and current year tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are income taxes of the same taxable entity.

Transfer pricing

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing, dated 18 November 2007 scts details about
implementation.

According to the Communiqué, if a taxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchasc of goods
and scrvices with related parties, where the prices arc not sct in accordance with arm's length principle,
then related profits are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer pricing. Such
disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing arc not accepted as tax deductible for corporate
income tax purposcs.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Taxes (Continued)
fnvestment incentive

As per the provisional 69th article which is added to the 193 numbered Income Tax Law by 5479
numbered Law that is published on & April 2006 dated and 26133 numbered Official Gazette and became
effective since 1 January 2006, tax payers could deduct investment incentives calculated according to
the legislation  provisions (including tax rate  rclated provisions) in force as  at
31 December 2005, only from the taxable income of the vears 2006, 2007, and 2008. In this context,
income and corporate taxpayers could deduet the following items only from the taxable income of 2006,
2007, and 2008;

1I-  The carried forward investment incentive exemptions, which could not be deducted from 2005
revenue and available as at 31 December 2003,

2-  For the investments, which made in the scope of investment incentive certificates drawn upon
taxpayer’s application before 24 April 2003 and started within the frame of 193 numbered Income
Tax Law’s additional 1, 2,345 and 6th articles - later repealed by 4842 numbered law- the
amounts that realized in the scope of certificate after the date | January 2006.

3-  Within the frame of Article 19 of 193 numbered Law which repealed 5479 numbered Law,
investment expenditures incurred after 1 January 2006 will be deductible only from the profits of
years 2006, 2007 and 2008 provided that they are economically and technically integral parts of
the investment started before 1 January 2006,

In this frame the rights of tax payers who could not deduct investment incentives fully or partially due
to insufficient taxable income during those years, are abrogated as at 31 December 2008, According to
this regulation limiting the right to deduct the investment expenditure from taxable profit, investment
incentive exemption will be applied to the taxable profit of 2008 at the latest. Investment incentive
exemption amount which could not be deducted due to lack of taxable profit till the end of 2009 is not
possible to be deducted from the taxable profit of 2004 and subsequent years. Meanwhile, this exemption
amount cannot be recorded as expense in the tax books.

In accordance with the decision taken by the Turkish Constitutional Court on 15 October 2009, “2006,
2007 and 2008” clause of the provisional Article no. 69 of Income Tax Law mentioned above, is repealed
and time limitation for the use of investment incentive is removed. The repeal related to investment
incentive is enacted and issued in the 8 January 2010 dated and 27456 numbered Official Gazette.

Accordingly, investment incentive amounts carried forward to 2006 due to lack of taxable profit and the
other investment incentive amounts which arising from investments prior to 2006 and on goes after this
date in the context of economic and technical integrity can be applied for not only 2006, 2007 and 2008
but also in subsequent years. Accordingly, the Group will be able to deduct its remaining investment
incentives from taxable profit in the future without any time limitation.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Taxes (Continued)

Pursuant to the 6009 numbered Law published on 1 August 2010 dated and 27659 numbered Official
Gazette and became effective accordingly, the amount of investment incentive exemption which is
deducted from income to estimate the tax base cannot be more than 25% of the income, and the
remaining income will be subject to income tax at the prevailing tax rate. In accordance with this law
and Constitutional Court decision there is no time limitation in using investment incentive amount
carried forward from vear 2005 but the amount could not be more than 25% of income,

The clause “The amount which to be deducted as investment incentive to estimate tax base cannot
exceed 25% of related income™ which has been added to first clause of the temporary 69th article of
Law No: 193 with the 5th anticle of Law No: 6009 on Amendments to Income Tax Law and Some Other
Laws and Decree Laws has been abrogated with the decisions no: E2010/93 and K.2012/20 on 9
February 2012,

Related party

In accordance with TAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures sharcholders, key management and board
members, in each case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with them, and associated
companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Related party transactions consist of the
transfer of the assets and liabilities between related parties by a price or free of charge.

For the purpose of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, sharcholders of the Company
the companies controlled by/associated with them, key management and the Board members of the
Company are referred to as related parties..

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statements of income is determined by dividing the profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period concerned. In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata
distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) to existing sharcholders from retained earnings to sharcholders’
equity. For the purpose of carnings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issued without a
corresponding change in resources by giving them retroactive effeet for the period in which they were
issued and for each earlier period (Note 18).

Subsequent events

Subscquent events means the events occurred between the reporting date and the authorization date for
the announcement of the financial statements. In accordance with TAS 10 - Events After the Balance
Sheet Date; post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group's position at
the balance sheet dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-
balance sheet events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Statement of cash flows

The Group prepares consolidated statement of cash flows to inform the users of the consolidated
financial statements about the changes in its net assets, its consolidated financial structure and its ability
to affect the amount and timing of its consolidated cash flows with respect to changing external
conditions.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated cash flows of the period are reported with a
classificarion based on operating, investing and financing activities. Consolidated cash flows from
operating activities represent cash flows from activities within the scope of business. Consolidated cash
flows relating to investment activities represent cash flows used and generated from investment
activities (fixed investments and financial investments). Consolidated cash flows relating to financing
activities represent the sources of financing the Group used and the repayments of these sources.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, for the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents are presented below:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Banks 163,200 112,062
Interest accruals on bank depositsi-) (95) (2}

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 163,105 112,060

Information on previous period accounting policies that are not in effect during the current period
Financial instruments

The Group classifies and recognises its securities under available-for-sale securities and subsidiaries.

Financial assets are classified on the date they are acquired in line with “market risk policies” determined
by Company management and considering their purchase purposes.

All financial assets are shown at cost, including the fair value and purchasing costs concerning the
investment.

(i)  Awvailable-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are recognised in financial statements at their fair value, caleulated using
the reduced cash flow method or the stock exchange value as of the balance sheet date, Impact on change
in fair values are recognised in “revaluation surplus of financial assets” under equitics. If a permanent
impairment is detected in the fair value of such assets, the impact of the impairment is reflected on the
income statement. When these securities are sold, accumulated fair value adjustments are transferred to
the income statement. These securities include investments in securities of which the Group does not
have controlling power or significant activity and which represent a share of capital, and those traded in
organised markets and for which fair value can be determined in a reliable manner and which are
recognised in non-consolidated financial statements at their fair value, and those which are not traded
in organised markets and for which fair value cannot be determined m a reliable manner and which are
recognised at their cost after the impairment provision (if any) is st aside,
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3 - SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment reporting of financial information

A business segment is a part of an area where the Group operates and for which outcomes are regularly
reviewed, performance is measured and financial information can be distinguished by the Board of
Directors (as the decision making authority), and a business segment earns revenues and has expenses,
including revenues and expenses arising from transactions with other business segments.

Since all activitics of the Group consist of financial leasing and are performed in a single region, Turkey,
there is no scgment reporting,
4 - FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Asat 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, details of bank balances are as follow
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Banks 163,105 112,062
Demand deposit 115,313 110,555
Time deposit 47.611 1.507
Liquid fund 181 -

Total 163,105 112,062

Asat 31 December 2018, time deposits consist of bank placements with maturity less than three months
and with interest rates average 21% for foreign currency. Group do not have TRY time deposits (31
December 2017: %12.50).

Financial assets for which fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive income

Details of financial asscts for which the fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive
income are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 20017

Carrying Carrying

valug ™ Share (%) value Pay (%)
Not Traded af Stock Market:
Vakif Faktoring A.S. %238 379 5981 379
Vakil Pazarlama Sanavi ve Ticaret A.S. 1.617 327 L6l6 3.27
Vakaf Yatimm Menkul Degerler A5, 602 0.25 467 0.25
Financial assets for which fair value

difference is recognised
through other comprehensive income 10,517 B064

{" Available-for-sale financial assets that are monitored at Level 3 include fair values of marketable securities
representing fair market value held by independent appraisers.
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5 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, available for sale financial assets are as follow:

31 December 2018 31 December2017

TP YP TP YP
Lease reccivables G (G 2,166,944 590,349 1,423 805
Invoiced lease receivables 47,180 114,162 12,129 32,138
Subtotal 655,248 1,281,106 602,478 1,455,943
Unearned interest income (163,253) (259,429 (137.937) (159,626)
Leasing contracls in progress 11,101 110,135 6,776 48,748
Advances given for lease transactions 25,842 120,852 2,728 61,091
Other receivables related to leasing transactions (*) 5,370 1,544 - -
Finance lease receivables, net of unearned income 534,308 2,254,208 474,045 1,406,156
Impaired lease receivables 27,004 129,143 62,084 111,470
Specific provision (11,995) (G8,983) (30,8659) (88,620)
Impaired lease receivables, net 15,009 6,160 31,215 22,850
Finance lease receivables, net 549,317 2,314,308 505,260 1429006

U Other receivables amounting TRY 3,202 recorded in the statement of financial position on 31 December
2007 are not included.

Prospective aging analysis of the neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired lease
receivables is as follows:

4 year and
31 December 2018 Uptol vear 1-2 year 2-3year  3-4 yvear over Total
Lease receivables 1372877 796279 557418 321,921 162,703 3211198
Unearned interest income {183,509y (115,245)  (56,578)  (22900)  (44,450) (422,682)
Finance lease receivables, Net 1,189,368 681,034 S00.840 299,021 118,253 2, 7T8R.516
4 vear and
31 December 2017 Uptol year  1-2 year  2-3year 34 year over Total
Lease receivables B90.250 525905  3RTA55 237945 136,209 2,177,764
Unearned interest income (130.345) (90,6400 (47.645)  (20.915) (B018)  (297.563)
Finance lease receivahles, Net 759,905 435,265 339810 217,030 128,191 1,880,201

As of 31 December 2018, the average compounded interest rates for finance lease receivables are
%17.74 for TL, %8.36 for USD and %6.04 for EUR (31 December 2017: %1432 for TL, %8 41 for
USD and %5.86 for EUR).
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5 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the aging of the lease receivables and related specific provisions

are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Meither past due nor impaired 2345416 1.696,99]
Past due but not impaired 168,256 63,867
Impairment 156,147 173,554
Allowances for impairment (%0,978) (119,489)
Finance lease receivables, net 2,588,841 1,814,923

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

151-240 days 4,138 4837
241-1 year 49,901 3470
| year and over 102,108 165,247
Impaired lease receivables, net 156,147 173,554

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, details of the impaired lease receivables and related specific
provisions are as follows:

31 r 201 3 mhber 2017
TP YP TP YP
Impaired lease receivables 27,004 129,143 62,084 111,470
Specific provisions (11,995) (68.983) (30,869) (B8,620)
Impaired lease receivables, net 15,009 00,160 31,215 22,850

The movement of the specific provision during the vear 15 as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Specific provisions at the beginning of the year 119,489 117,003
Provision for the year 35,665 11.376
Collections during the year (12.907) (5,564)
Finance lease receivables written off during the year ™" (61,269) (3,326)
Specific provisions at the end of the year 80,978 119,489

With the decision of the Board of Direclors on 29 June 2018, receivables amounting TRY 61,269 (31 December
2017: None) which have low/no possibility of collection and are followed under accounts which are for non-
perlorming loans shall be followed at their token value,
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5- LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The details of collaterals taken for finance lease receivables that have specific provisions are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Mortgage 20,125 47.164
Cash blockages 33021 15,278
Other 1.043 1.808
Taotal collateral 54,189 64,250

The group reviews any change in credit quality related to receivables from the date it is created to the
balance sheet date in order to decide whether the receivable can be collected or not. Since the Group has
many customers, credit risk concentration of the Group is not at a significant level. Sectoral distribution
of the finance lease receivables is presented in Note 21.

6 - TANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement in tangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2018:

1 January 2018  Additions"™ Disposals 31 December 2018

Cost:
Furniture and fixwure 741 305 (67) 979
Motor vehicles 120 - - 120
Other tangible assets 499 12 - 611
Buildings 22514 - - 22514
23,874 417 (67) 24,224
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture and fixmure (285) (151) 53 (383)
Motor vehicles (26) (243 - (500
Other tangible assets (439) (25) - {464)
Buildings (2,224) (560) - (2,784)
(2,974) (760) 53 (3,681)
Net Book Value 20,900 20,543

o The balance consists of the revaluation difference of the propertics for use
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6 - TANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Movement in tangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2017 is as follows:

1 January 2017 Additions Disposals 31 December 2017

Cost:
Furniture and fixture 363 416 (38) 741
Motor vehicles 602 - (482} 120
Other tangible assets 518 1] (297 499
Buildings 22514 - - 22514
Special cost 168 - (168) -
24,165 426 (717} 23,874
Acenmulated depreciation:
Furniture and fixture (203) (94) 12 (283)
Motor vehicles (484) (24) 482 (26)
Other tangible assets (568) (27) 156 (439}
Buildings (1,590) (634) - (2,224)
Special cost (131) - 131 -
(2,976) (779) 781 (2,974)
Net defter degeri 21,189 20,900

As 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there is no mortgage on the tangible assets of the Group.

As of 31 December 2018 total insurance coverage for tangible assets of the Group is TRY 19,062
(31 December 2017: 13,151 TL).

7 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in intangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2018 is as follows:

1 January 2018 Additions Disposals 31 December 2018

Cost:
Software 2,101 417 - 2,518
2,101 417 - 2,518
Acenmulated amortization:
Software (1,618) (377) - (1,995)
(1,618) (377) - (1,995)
Net book value 483 523

39



VAKI LERSING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 : 96

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

7 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Movement in intangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2017 is as follows:

1 January 2017 Additions Disposals 31 December 2017

Cost:
Software 1,683 418 - 2,101
1.683 418 - 2,101
Accumulated amortization:
Software (1,065) (553) - (1,618)
(1,065) (553) - (1,618)
Net book value 618 483

8- ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group’s assets held for resale are composed of
movables and immovable that are added to assets as a result of legal proceedings with regard to impaired
lease receivables are detailed below:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Real estate held for sale 230 208

Total 230 208

9 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

VAT payable 1,143 728
Social Security Premiums 270 409
Income tax 199 139
Stamp tax 7 6
Other - 5

1.624 1.287
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9 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Tax provision 14,080 3,856
Less: Prepaid taxes 309 -
Current income tax liabilities, net 13.771 3,856
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Tax expense
Corporate tax expense for the period (12,456) (3.917)
Deferred tax expense effect - (4,629}
Deferred tax income effect 2,003 =
(10,363) (8,546)
Reconciliation of current period tax expense to theoretical tax expense of the Group calculated by using
the statutory tax rate:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Profit before taxes 50,378 42,393
Theoretical tax expense with 22% tax rate ' (11,083) (8,479)
Other'™ 720 (67)
Current year tax expense (10,363) (8,546)

(*)  The tax rate used for the theoretical tax expense calculated on 31 December 2017 was 20%,
(**)  Investment tax credits used by the Group consist of non-deductible expenses and other expenses.

Deferred taxes

The Company calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes™ (“TAS 127). In the deferred tax
calculation, the cnacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance sheet
date,

The Company uses a 22% tax rate in deferred tax caleulations taking into consideration the periods in
which deferred tax assets are realized or deferred tax liabilities are fulfilled.

As mentioned above, as of 31 December 2018, the Company’s management recorded deferred tax asset
amounting to TRY 168,116 from unused investment according to constitutional court decision.
(31 December 2017: TRY 186.717)

Details of cumulative temporary differences and the deferred income tax assets and liabilities calculated
by using the effective tax rates are summarised below:
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9 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES(Continued)

Details of cumulative temporary differences and the deferred income tax assets and liabilities caleulated
by using the effective tax rates are summarised below:

Total Deferred tax assets/
Temporary differences (liabilitics)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2018 2017 2018 2017

Lease Assel Receivable Impainment 72,527 74,504 15,956 14,901

Unused investment incentives- without stoppagel 68,116 186,717 3,699 73

Provision for emplovee termination benefil 2,451 1,926 490 AR5

Provision for unused vacations 1,282 1.135 282 227

Other short term employee benefits 1,014 T8 223 145

Deferred tax asscts 20,650 16,031

Finance lease income accruals (25,772) (16,625) (5,670 (3,325)
Tangible and intengible assetls

revaluation difference (18,439 (1%,439) (1.544) (1.844)

Subsidary revaluation fund (8377 (5,924) 419 (296)

Others (1,685) (1,316) (371) (264)

Deferred tax liabilities (8,304) (5.729)

Deferred tax assets, (net) 12,346 10,302

The movement for deferred tax assets is as follows:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

1 January 10,302 15,955
Current year deferred tax income/expense 2,093 (4,629}
Deferred tax in Equity income/expense (49} (1,024)
31 December 12,346 10,302

10 - OTHER ASSETS
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, details of other assets are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
TP YP TP YP
Checks Received 3378 6,573 250 133
Prepaid expenses 1,076 2,895 750 2,891
Other 266 386 248 -
Total other assets 4,720 9,854 1,248 3,024
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11 - BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, details of the borrowings are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

TL FC TL FC
Domestic banks 261,581 1,276,831 305,409 655,155
Foreign banks - 983,220 - 743,828
Total Borrowings 261,581 2,260,051 305,409 1,398,983

Carrving value
Average
Amount in original nterest  Uptod 3 months to Owver

31 December 2018 currencies rates(%s)  months 1 year 1 year Taotal
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fixed rate borrowings:
TRY 261,581 2285 252900 3,000 3,675 261.581
UsD 40,775 3,36 3,281 204,683 4,550 214,514
EUR 70,332 352 144988 218,651 60,332 423,961
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR 105 898 2.99 35297 65 834 537225 638 356
Total borrowing from domestic banks 438472 494,168 605,772 1,538.412
Borrowings from foreign banks:
Fixed rate borrowings:
EUR 110,906 349 69,030 37,529 227932 668,541
UsD 18,106 5.87 - - 95254 95254
Floating rate horrowings
EUR 36,401 259 45254 4,654 169,517 219425
Total borrowings from foreign banks 114,284 376,183 492,753 983,220
Total borrowings 552,756 870,351 1,098,525 2,521,632
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11 - BORROWINGS (Continued)

Carrving value
Average
Amount in original interest  Uptod 3 months to Over
31 December 2017 currencies rates(%e)  months 1 year 1 vear Tuotal
Borrowings from domestic banks
Fixved rate borrowings:
TRY 305,409 1337 270391 25312 9,706 305,409
LIS 52,144 5.03 - 181,460 15,221 196,681
EUR 49067 123 82219 08,209 45,196 225624
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR 51,567 2.84 - 32,162 200,688 232,850
Total borrowing from domestic banks 352,610 337143 270,811 960,564
Borrowings from foreign banks
Fixved rate borrowings:
ELUTR 136,022 345 51,510 85,637 477,060 614,207
IS 10,061 5.50 - 30,445 7619 kA
Floating rate borrowings
EUR 20,276 220 3,643 5,942 81,972 91,557
Total borrowings from foreign banks 55,153 122,024 566,651 T43,82%
Taotal borrowings 407,763 459,167 837462 1,704,392

12 - SECURITIES ISSUED

Asat 31 December 2018 details of securities issued are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 mber 2017
TP YP TP YP
Bill = 08,856 - 94 921 -
Leasc certificate ™™ 69,826 - - -
Total securities issued 168,682 - 94,921 -

' The Group has realized 90 days maturily financing bonus issue with a nominal value of TRY 100,000 on
Octoboer 17, 2018 with the sales method of qualified investors, The maturity date of bill is Octoboer 17,
201 % and the redemption date is JTanuary 15, 20019, The annual interest rate on this Gnancing bill is 29 00%.

) Through Kanlim Varhk Kiralama A5, which provides loans to the Group, the Group completed the sale
of lease certificates backed by a management agreement, and having a maturity period of 364 days, and
which amounted 1o TRY 62,960, to qualified investors (without a public offering). The start date of the
maturity of the asset-backed security is 28 March 2018, and the redemption date is 29 March 2019, The
annual simple interest rate on this asset-backed security is 14.50%.
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13 - OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018 details of other liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
TP YP TP YP
Advances received " 17,289 79.434 10,440 44,109
Other trade payables 12,844 15,761 5718 18,421
Deffered income 1,226 2,978 1,351 1,957
Total other liabilities 31,359 98,173 17,509 04,487
o Advances received consist of rent advances received from the customers in respeet to financial

lease contracts for the machinery and equipment that are not delivered to the customers

14 - PROVISIONS

As at 31 December 2018 details of provisions for liabilities and charges are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

P YP TP YP

Reserve for employee benefits 4,747 - 3,779 -
Reserve for employee termination benefit 2431 - 1,926 -
Provision for unused vacations 1,282 - 1,135 -
Reserve for bonuses 327 - 417 -
Provisions for other employee rights 487 - 01 -
Total provisions 4,747 3379 -

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

At the beginning of the year 1,926 1,740
Interest rate cost 238 237
Serviee cost 185 185
Payments during the year (268) (295)
Actuarial difference ™ 370 50
At the end of the vear 2,451 1.926

™ Actuarial (loss)/profit is accounted under other comprehensive income since | January 2013,
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15- EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2018, the share in capital of the Company amounts to TRY 140,000 and composed
of 14.000.000.000 shares with a face value of TRY0.01 each (31 December 2017: capital shares
TRY 109,000, nominal value: 10900000000},

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company is as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Amount of Share Amount of Share
Share(TL) Percentage (%) Share(TL) Percentage (%)
Vakifbank 82,197 58.71 63,996 238,71
Giines Sigorta AS. 21,909 15.65 17,057 %l5.65
Publicly traded ™ 31,553 22.54 24 566 22,54
Other 4,341 3.10 3,381 310
Pain-in capital 140,000 100 109,000 Yol00

©) The ratio is calenlated from the shares of the Company registered at Takasbank,
Capital reserves

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, capital reserves amounted to TRY 244 consists of
inflation adjustment differences of paid-in capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, revaluation difference on tangible assets amounting to TRY16,595
(31 December 2017: TRY16,595) is accounted directly in equity. As at 31 December 2018 the
marketable securities valuation differences amounts to TRY 7,958 (31 December 2017: TRYS 628),

Profit reserves

As at 31 December 2018, profit reserves of the Group consists of first legal reserves amounting to
TRY 7,984 (31 December 2017: TRY6,034) and extraordinary reserves amounting to TRY 34,626
(31 December 2017: TRY 33 505).

Profit distribution

Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below:

According to the Turkish Commerecial Code, legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves.
Primary reserves are 5% of statutory net profit until it reaches 20% of the Company’s share capital.
Secondary reserves are 10% of profit distributed in excess of 5% of share capital. According to the
Turkish Commercial Code, as long as legal reserves do not exceed 50% of share capital, they can be
used to offset losses but cannot be used in any other way.

At the Annual General Assembly held on 15 May 2018, due to the 2018 year end consolidated gain
amounting TRY 33,847, it has been decided to allocate TRY 1,683 of first legal reserves, to be added to
the capital TRY 31,000 to give bonus shares and to reserve extraordinary reserve TRY 981,
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16 - OPERATING EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 December 2018, general administrative expenses included in the operating

expenses are as follow:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

General administration expenses 1,996 1614
Court expenscs 1,270 711
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,138 1,204
Consultancy cxpenscs 713 810
Transportation expenses 446 379
Motary expenscs 349 351
Marketing expenses 151 165
Printing, stationary and office expenses 148 95
Taxes, duties and charges expenses 109 110
MNon-deductible expenses 77 62
Registration expenses 46 S0
Other operating expenses 822 558
Total general administrative expenses 7,265 6,109

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, personnel expenses included in the

operating expenses are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Salaries 11,309 8,653
Social security premiums and other contributions 1,592 1,255
Personnel insurance expenscs 879 739
Other personnel expenses 690 568
Total personnel expenses 14,470 11,215
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17 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSE
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, personnel expenses included in the

operating expenses are as follows:

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Foreign exchange gains 38,639 9438
Provisions reversed during the vear 13,175 5,870
Interest income from non-performing loans 5,793 2,858
Default interest income 3313 4,049
Interest income from bank deposits 1,859 109
Income from sales of assets held for sale 27 628
Interest income from bank deposits 109 [
Rent income 48 43
Other income 1,920 2.572
Total other operating income 65,127 25,573
Other operating expenses:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Loss on derivative financial transactions 1,023 -
Other expense 472 39
Total other operating expenses 1,495 39

18 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

At the beginning of the year

31 December 2018 31 December 20177

Total number of outstanding shares 14,000 000,000 14,000,000, 000
At the beginning of the vear
Total number of outstanding shares 14,000,000,000 14.000,000,000

31 December 2018 31 December 20177

Net income for the period 40,015 33,847
MNumber of outstanding shares

with a nominal value of TL 0.01 14,000,000,000 14,000,000,000
Earnings per share (TL) 0.2858 0.2418

) Capital increase performed through internal resources and earnings per share calculated for the previous

period accordingly.



VAKIF LEASING
ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018 ¢ 1 05

/' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

19 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, details of related party balances are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Giines Sigorta A5, - 81
Finance lease interest income - 81
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O, 1,235 82
Interest income from related parties 1,235 82
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankasi T A, - interest expense 6,476 9,243
Vakifbank International AG- interest expense 4343 3,523
Finance expenses of related parties 10,819 12,766
Giines Sigorta A5, 2,060 1,463
Vakif Emeklilik ve Hayat A5, 50 44
Vakif Faktoring A.S. 20 14
Other incomes of related parties 2,130 1,521
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 1,246 a4
Giines Sigorta A5, 666 562
Valkaf Yatinm Menkul Degerler ALS, 674 348
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S, 276 327
Vakif Faktoring A5, 28 -
Vakif Emeklilik ve Hayat A.S. 8 8
Other expenses of related parties 2,898 1,339
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticarct A.5. 67 -
Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler ALS. 42 6
Dividend income of relates parties 109 [

Executive management compensations
Asat 31 December 2018 and 2017, Group’s executive management compensations are as follows:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Compensation to the executive management 1,870 1,024

Total 1.870 1.024

The executive management of the Group consists of general manager, assistant general managers,
members of the board of directors and the members of the audit committee.
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20 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Collaterals received

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the collaterals obtained by the Group against finance lease
receivables are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

TP YP TP YP
Received guarantees 4 754 497 16,818,043 4512967 11,378,638
Mortgages 272,776 1,040,031 265,539 630,215
Letters of guarantee 4 498 - 17,830 6,673
Cash blockage 303 469 195 3,489
Others 413,949 436,141 248,026 151,538
Total 5,446,023 18,294,684 5,044,557 12,190,606

Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has irrevocable commitments amounted to TRY487 838
(31 December 2017 TRY307 687) arising from letter of credits used for the tangible asset purchases
subject to finance leases. The distribution of the commitments according to currency types is as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

TRY 352,393 239,968
EUR 112,363 33,245
JPY 13,721 -
uUsD 9,361 iz 112
GBP - 2.362
Total 487,838 307,687

Revocable Commitments

As at 3] December 2018, Group's financial lease commitments amounts to TRY425 148 (31 December
20017: TRY477.221).

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
TP YP TP YP
Financial lease commitments 30,719 374 429 46,320 430,902
Total 50,719 374,429 46,320 430,902

Derivative linancial instruments

There are no derivative financial instruments as of 31 December 2018,
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21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the below risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital. The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk

The Board of Dircetors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Board of Dircctors monitors the effectiveness of the risk management
system through various mechanism established within the Group.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to sct appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policics and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and scrvices offered. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations,

Credit Risk

Credit risk is basically defined as the possibility that counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in
accordance under agreed terms of a contract. The Group aims to reduce exposed credit risks by entering
into contracts with the counterparties having high credibility and by obtaining sufficient collateral
against the loans provided. Besides, the Group analyze the financial position and the credibility of the
customers and aims to support this analysis with intelligence reports obtained from the third parties. In
addition, the sector and the geographical position of customers, where they operate and other factors
that may affect their operations are considered in the evaluation process of loans. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis to minimize the
credit risk. Credit risk is aimed to be controlled by the limits set by the Board of Directors.

Finance lease receivables cover many kinds of customers in different sectors. For the current balances
of the customers, credit evaluations are done periodically.

Balance sheet items of the Group, which are subject to credit risk, are as follows:

finance lease receivables

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
banks

other receivables

51



o
m % s
2 £
T W
= <
-~ B
= 90
= 2 i
= I 0O
-
1= O 8=
g= =z M
E2 < rNu - - - - - YSL P Yim samsodxa paoys ouwEeq O i
m = - - - - - - SIAURIENG Af PAIA0D IN[EA YOO 1N -
= N - - - - - (-} WAy -
a) Z - - - - - - {ss0ud) anp 1swd jop -
__._IL J 061°FS - - - - 061°Fs SINIENG A PAAA0D IN[RA YOO 1IN -
T 2 (8L6°08) - - - - (8L6°08) (=) warspeduig -
A O LFT'9ST - - - - LFT'951 (ss0if) anpaaag) -
o R GOTSL - - - - 691°6L spsse panedunt jo anjea Fudue @y g
@) ] - - - - - - SIURIENG A pasaaod nonoed sy -
N A L | - - - - GTRa 1 PRIEL JOU JNG SNPIBA0S 2 YDNM S1IS58 [RISUBIY Jo anjea Funiums 12y i)
zZ W - - - - - - pastedun 10 INPEANG ST PIISSELI 3 [[14 Y IS0
O L “PRUNIIIUISAE IR YR} S12558 [RIMIRNY Jo anes Fulium 1oy K|
QO = SPG'ZEY - - . e m!m”ﬂm@, saajURIEnT Aq paraacd uotiod s, -
o SEPSILT - - OI'€91 PI6o DIF'CPET ANPUANG 10U P
m TSN A AT S1I55E [RIURML] Jo anjea SULLL 1] v
S W - - - - SEI°L89 saauEIRnd Al PAR2A0D YSU TOTITKE Jo uorod sy -
09R°85L°T - - SOT°E91 riG'e TPR'RRET (T+a+0+8+¥) 2ep Bunaodar jie s 511 P31 Wnmpxen o) amsodsy
[Fe L o] L L | sysodag SqEAIIIY SAqEARY RLOT Amuiaxm] 1§
[waurnlg squrg A1) ]
HU-.-I-.-_.E
SAHEARIY

SSMOJ[OJ SE SI SIUIWNISUL [RIDURUY JO SILOFNED U0 Paseq §su IPatd 01 ansodxa ‘L [07 19qadaq € PUB §10T 19qW3( [€ 18 SY

(panunuo)) INAWADVNYIN MSIH TVIDONVYNIA ANV SINTWIHLSNI TVIONVNIA - 12

(paeatput astmiayo ssapun T L,.) W {sopEm ], ur passandya sjumoury)
8107 HAGIWADAA 1€ LV SINTWALVLS TVIDNVNIA FHL OL SHLON
"§'V VINV IV TVSNYNLL ADIVA

"HSIMAENL NI aANSSI ATIVNIOIO
LHOdTH SSHOLIANY INFANAJAANT ANV SINTFIWALVLS TVIONVNIA
HSTI'TONH OLNI NOLLVISNVHL AINTINIANOD




139

- - SYSH Upad i samnsodya 1201 23U 110 A
- - saoquemnd Ag pataaod anfes §ooq ] -

- - - - - - (-} Juatsredur) -
- - - - - (ss00F) anp sed 1op] - -
05T - - - 05T'hY saauRIEnd Aq pasancd anfea Yooq PN -
(6&t611) - - - (&t 6l1) (<) naueredug -
FEEELT - - - FES'EL] {ss0rd) anpiaag) -
S90S - - SO0'FS sipsse paswdunt jo anjea Swdies . (]
- - - - saaqmmnd Aq pataaos nongod sy -
LOR'E9 - - LOB'EY pamediin ot jadg ANPIIA0S A0 AN SIASsE (R jo anjes Sulioe jap] 2
- - - - - pasedu 10 SPIAAG 5B PAISSEL g ([ YHYM IS0
‘_uﬂhEuE”_.m.H 2B JET[) SI255E [RIDUELL [0 2n]EA ﬁ.ﬂ...ﬁ.ﬂ.ﬂ. 128] ]
SH0'ERT - - - - SH0'E8T saaueiend Aq patsacy uonsod g
SETFIS] - - 0TI T0g's 1669691 ANPIARO J0U PRt
SIS A0 YDNM $19SSE IR jo anjea oy Y
brILSE - - - - PE1LSE SOMUALIENG A PAIA0d 5L wmiie jo uotod sy -
LRI'TEG'L - - 0TI w's EI6PINL (A+Q+D+8+V) Mep Buntodas 1 se Y511 JPaad wnwpxew o3 ansodyy
[T FETT) JIMYSAAM] spsodaq salqeAlay SAlQEAlITY BI0T 1aquaaq 1€
eI squEg 130 ased
R
SIQEARITY

(panunuo)) INAWADVNYIN MSIH TVIDONVYNIA ANV SINTWIHLSNI TVIONVNIA - 12

(‘patesput astwio ssapun (L) v gsepm, o passandya sjumoury)
8107 HAGIWADAA 1€ LV SINTWALVLS TVIDNVNIA FHL OL SHLON
"§'V VINV IV TVSNYNLL ADIVA

"HSIMAENL NI aANSSI ATIVNIOIO
LHOdTH SSHOLIANY INFANAJAANT ANV SINTFIWALVLS TVIONVNIA
HSTI'TONH OLNI NOLLVISNVHL AINTINIANOD

©
—i
o
N
[a et
[
M
>
[
Q
s
@)
i
3!
O
Z
@)
zZ
(3
)
Qo
o
[
o
[
T
T
[a e
O
(T

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018

VAKIF LERSING

/' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2018

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Asat 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, sectoral distribution of finance lease receivables which
are not under impaired is as fallows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Manufacturing 1,122,889 44,67 793,050 45.04
Construction 634,052 2522 359439 2041
Wholesale, retail and rading 206,924 823 178,305 10,13
Real estate 161,512 6.43 635,906 3.74
Hotels and restaurants 102211 4.07 83,730 4.76
Educartion 99, 349 305 81,520 463
Mining 57,712 2.30 43,790 2.49
Agriculture 44,911 1.79 43,963 2.50
Transportation, warchousing
and communication 34,796 1.38 52,765 3.00
Health and social services 20,447 1.17 44,431 2.52
Other social and individual services 10,248 041 6,014 (.34
Financial intermediary services 3327 0.13 2,905 016
Others 6,294 0,25 5,040 0,29
Total 2,513,672 100 1,760,858 100
Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial
liabilities.

Management of liquidity risk

Main responsibility for the liquidity risk management belongs to Board of Directors. Board of Directors
has created a suitable liquidity risk management for the short, medium and long term funding and

liquidity needs. The Group manages the liquidity risk by following forecasted and actual cash flows,
matching the terms of financial assets and liabilities and securing necessary funds.

The following table provides undiscounted cash flows with respect to the contractual (or expected)
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities

Total Contractunl/ More
Carrving expected maturity & months 6-12 1-2 -5 than 5
31 December 2018 Amount cash infout Mows or less manths VEArs NCUrs Years
Bormowings 2,521,632 2627397 1,043 088 437,106 585215 563,958
Securitics issued 168,682 168,682 168,682 - - -
Miscellaneous payables
and other liabilitics 129,533 129,533 129,533
Total 2B1847 2925612 1,341,303 437,106 583,215 563,948
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21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Total Contractual Maore
Carrving  expected cash fows! 6 months 612 1-2 2-5 than 5
31 December 2017 Amount out Mlows or less months years years years
Bormowings 1,704,392 1,740, 0006 G ATT 20,556 920973
Securities issued 94,921 94,921 24,921 . -
Miscellancous payables
and other habilities 78,686 TE.686 78,686
Total 1LET7.99% 1,964,613 TTH.084 270,556 920973 -
Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that the Group's income or the value of its financial instruments will be affected
through the changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencics, such as lease
operations and borrowings. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions were recorded in the period transactions occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are converted into TRY at the exchange rates prevailing at balance
sheet date with the resulting exchange differences recognized in the statement of income as forcign
exchange gain or loss,

Asat 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group’s foreign currency assets and liabilities with
their TRY equivalents are as follows:

31 December 2018 US Dollar Euro JPY GBP CNY Tutal
Banks 28,069 132,331 - - - 160 400
Finance lease receivables, net (1 354218 1,899,713 - 39 238 2254 208
Ciher Assels 6,629 3,225 - - - 9.854
Total assets 388,916 2035269 - 39 138 2424462
Bomrowing 309,769 1,950,282 - - - 2. 260,051
Chiher liabilities 15,403 79,641 3131 (2) - 98173
Total liabilitics 325,172 2029923 31 (2) - 2 358224
Net financial statement position 63,744 5,346 (3,131) 41 238 66,238

Net off-balance sheet items position

Net foreign currency position 63,744 5,346 (3.131) 41 138 66,238
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21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 December 2017 US Dallar Euro JPY GBP CNY Total
Banks 9,802 100,188 - 109,990
Finance lease receivables, net (1) 261,190 1,144.886 80 1,406,156
Other assets - 286 - 280
Prepaid expenses 20 2871 2,891
Total Assets 27,012 1,248.231 - 80 - 1,519313
Borrowing 734745 1,164,238 1,398,983
Miscellancous payables 5425 12,990 - 18,421
Other liabilities 8137 35,708 264 44,109
Deferred Income 345 1,612 - 1.957
Total liabilitics 248,652 1214554 - 264 - 1463470
Met financial statement position 12,360 33,677 - (184) - 55,853
Net off-balance sheet items position (2)

Net foreign currency position 12,360 33,677 - (184) - 55,853
n Tmpaired receivables which is stated as FC in financial statements are not included,

Foreign currency sensitivity analvsis

The effects of 10 percent change of the TRY against the following currencies on the consolidated
statement of income and consolidated equity for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

31 December 2017 are shown below,

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Profit / (Loss) Equity
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of foreign of foreign
31 December 2018 CUrTENCy CUrrency CUrrency CUrrency
10% change of the US Dollar against TRY
1-Net USD asset/Tiability 6,374 (6,374) 6,374 6,374)
2-Hedged portion of TRY agamst USD (=) - - - -
3-Net effect of US Dollar{1+2) 6,374 (6,374) 6,374 (6,374)
10%s change of the Euro against TRY
4-Met Euro asset/liability 535 (535) 535 (535)
3-Hedged portion of TRY against Furo () - - - -
6-MNet effect of Eura (4+5) 535 (335) 535 (335)
10%s change of the JPY against TRY
T-MNet JPY asset/liability (313) 313 (313) 313
8-Hedged portion of TRY against JPY (-) - - - -
9-Net effect of JPY (7+5) (313) 33 (313) 313
10%s change of the GBF against TRY
10-MNet GHP asset/liability 4 (4) q ()
11-Hedged portion of TRY against GBP (=) - - - -
12-Net effect of GBP (10411) 4 4y 4 ()
10%s change of the CNY against TRY
13- Net CNY asset/liability 24 (24) 24 (24)
Hedged portion agamst CNY (<) - - - -
15- Net effect of CNY(13+14) 24 (24) 24 (24)
TOTAL (3+6+9+12+15) 6,624 (6,624) 6,624 (6,624)
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21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

il Equity Ly
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of foreign of foreign

31 December 2017 currency currency currency currency
10%s change of the US Dollar against TRY

|-Met USTY assetliability 2,236 (2,236) 2236 (2,236)
2-Hedged portion of TRY agamst USD {-) - - - -
3-Net effect of US Dollar{1+2) 2,236 (2,236) 2,236 (2,236)
10%s change of the Euro against TRY

4-Net Furo asset/liability 3,368 (3.368) 3,368 (3,368)
S-Hedged portion of TRY against Euro (-) - - - -
G-Met effect of Euro (445) 3,368 (3,368) 3368 (3,368)

10%% change of the JPY against TRY
T-Met JPY assetliability - - - -
8-Hedged portion of TRY against JPY (-} - - . .

9-Net effect of JPY (7+8) - - - -
10%s change of the GBF against TRY

10-Net GBP assetliability (18) 18 (18) 18
11-Hedged portion of TRY against GBP (-) - - - -
12-Net effect of GBP (10+11) (18) 18 (18) 18

10%s change of the CNY against TRY

13- Net CNY asset/liability

Hedged portion agaimst CNY (<) - -
15- Net effect of CNY (13+14) - -

TOTAL (3+6+9+12+15) 5,586 (5,586) 5,586 (5,586)

® Equity effect includes profiv{loss) effect...
Exposure to interest rate risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed to the risk of loss from fluctuations in the
future cash flows because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally
through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through its fixed and variable rate borrowings. The risk is
managed by appropriate distribution between fixed and variable rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the interest bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Group are
as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Financial assets and liabilities with fixed inferest rate

Time deposits 47611 1,507
Finance lease receivables, net 2513672 1,760 858
Borrowing 1,663,851 1,379,985
Securitics issued 168,682 94,921
Financial assets and liabilities with floating rate

Funds borrowed 857,781 324,407
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21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity
Interest rate sensitivity of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the fair

values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held as at 31 December 2018 and effect on
net interest income of floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held,

Profit or Loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2018 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities {86) 86 (86) 86
Total, net (86) 86 (86) 86
Profit or Loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2017 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial Labilitics (32) 32 (32) 32
Total, net {32) 32 (32) 32

(*)  Equity effect includes profit{loss) effiect.
Capital management
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between the debt and

equity in an effective way so as to increase its profit.

Along with no change in the strategy of the Group in 2018, the ratio of the equities to the debis is 9%
(31 December 2017: 11%). As of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 | the debt to equity ratio is

as follows:

31 December 2018
Borrowing 2.521,632
Miscellaneous payables 168,682
Other liabilitics 129,533
Total Liabilities 2,819,847
Total Equity 247,159
Equity/Debt ratio 9%
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21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 December 2017
Borrowing 1,704,392
Miscellaneous payables 94,921
Securities issued 24,137
Other liabilities 54,549
Total Liabilities 1,877,999
Total Equity 205,138
Equity/Debt ratio 11%

22 - FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, certain judgments made to
estimate the fair value can cause an adjustment to the fair value at current market conditions.

Fair values of the financial lease receivables and funds borrowed have been determined by discounting
the relevant cash flows by market interest rates prevailing as at balance sheet date . The carrying amounts
of the bank balances and miscellaneous payables and other liabilities are assumed that they approximate
their fair value due to their short-term nature

31 December 2008 31 December 20107
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value valuoe
Financial assets
Finance lease receivables, net 2,513,672 1,956,110 1,760,858 1073879
Banks 163,105 163,105 112,062 112,062
Financial labilities
Bormowing 2,797,758 2,522 262 1,704,392 |.688 6R
Securities issued 168,682 168,682 94,921 94,921
Miscellaneous pavables and liabilities 129,533 129,533 TH.GEE THARE
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22 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Classification of Fair Value Measurement

TFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure requires the disclosure of the classification of fair value
measurements according to a fair value hierarchy by reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value. This classification
basically relies on whether the relevant inputs are observable or not. Observable inputs refer to the use
of market data obtained from independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer to the use of
predictions and assumptions about the market made by the Company. This distinction brings about a
fair value measurement classification generally as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities:

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets or lability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable mputs).

Classification requires using observable market data if possible.

The classification of fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value is
as follows at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

31 December 2018 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total
Available for sale financial assets:
Investments in equity participations (%) - - 10,517 10,517
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss:

Financial derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities - - 10,517 10,517

) Awailable for sale financial assets presented at 3. level includes fair values of equity shares whose fair value
has been determined by independent valuation institulions.
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22 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31 December 2017 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total

Available for sale financial assets:
Investments in equity participations - - 8,064 8,064

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Financial derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities - - 5.064 5.064

© Available for sale linancial assels presented at 3. level includes fair values of equity shares whose fair value
has been determined by independent valuation institutions

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Balance at the beginning of the period 8,064 5,793

Total gains for the period recognized under equity 2,453 2,271
Dividend received during the period - -

Balance at the end of the period 10,517 8,064

23 - OTHER ISSUES

MNone.

24 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Mone,
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